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KANKAKEE

— EST. 1833

CITY OF KANKAKEE PLANNING BOARD

AGENDA
February 12, 2019, 7:00PM
385 East Oak Street, Kankakee, IL

Call to Order

Declaration of Quorum

Approval of Minutes — January 15", 2019 Meeting
Communications

City Council Actions

Unfinished Business

a.

Public Hearing for a Zoning Text amendment for Fortitude Community Outreach
Emergency Shelter (PADS) — continue to March 19t

New Business

a.

PB 2019-1-3 — A Public Hearing on an application by River Valley Recycling, LLC.
for a Major Variance for to the number of required parking stalls and the
pavement material to accommodate an expansion of their Recycling operation at
288 West South Tec Drive (PIN 16-17-18-400-039 and 16-17-18-400-038

PB 2019-1-2 — A Public Hearing on a request to rezone the property at 355 Wall
Street (PIN #16-17-06-200-004) from C-1 to R-1. Applicant is Robert F. de
Oliveira.

PB 2019-2-1 — A Public Hearing to amend Chapter 12, Administration, of the
Kankakee Zoning Code

PB 2019-2-2 — A Public Hearing to zone an 18-acre property upon annexation to
Light Industrial (I-1). The property is owned by the City of Kankakee and is
located at southwest corner of East Court Street and N 2750E Road, PIN #12-17-
03-111-002.

Other
Adjournment



2
CITY OF KANKAKEE PLANNING BOARD

Planning Board Hearing, on 01/15/2019 CERTIFIED
ORIGINAL

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

C TY OF KANKAKEE
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January 15, 2019
7:00 p.m

CASE: PB 19-12-2

REPORT OF PROCEEDI NGS had at the hearing of
the Gty of Kankakee Pl anning Board, |ocated at 385
East Oak Street, Second Fl oor Council Chanbers,
Kankakee, Illinois, on the 15th day of January,

A.D., 2019, at 7:00 o'clock p.m

Reported for
EUNI CE SACHS AND ASSQOCI ATES, by
Beth M Phelps, C S R
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1 WHEREUPON: 1 MR HOFFMAN:  And Dave Robinson enmiled ne and
2 * * * * * 2 said he was out of town tonight so he will not be
3 MS. COMHIG I'Il call this neeting to order. 3 here.
4 M. Hoffman, would you call the roll, please? 4 Ms. COHG Did you call Beverly Hood' s name?
5 MR HOFFMAN:  Yes. Chair Cowhi g. 5 MR HOFFMAN:  Ch, Beverly Hood. |'msorry. |
6 MS. COMHI G Here. 6 marked you off already on ny sheet, but | didn't
7 MR HOFFMAN: Wl lie Anes. 7 say the nane.
8 MR AMES: Here. 8 M5, HOOD:  Here.
9 MR HOFFMAN:  Edwi n Eckhardt . 9 MR HOFFMAN:  Sorry about that. Thank you.
10 MR ECKHARDT: Here. 10 MS. COMH G So we have a quorum
11 MR HOFFMAN.  Terrance Hooper. 11 You have the minutes of our neeting
12 (NO RESPONSE. ) 12 on Decenmber 18th. Unless there are any
13 MR. HOFFMAN. Debra Terrill. 13 corrections, we can just add those to the record
14 (NO RESPONSE. ) 14 with thanks to our reporter.
15 MR HOFFMAN:  Chip Rorem 15 Are there any conmuni cations?
16 MR ROREM  Here. 16 MR HOFFMAN:  No.
17 MR HOFFMAN:  Barry MCracken. 17 MS. COMHIG  Then will you tell us about
18 (NO RESPONSE. ) 18 council action?
19 MR HOFFMAN:  Arthur Lax. 19 MR HOFFMAN:  Sure. So we had two itens that
20 (NO RESPONSE. ) 20 were here last nonth that went before the Gty
21 MR HOFFMAN:  Victor Nevarez. 21  Council. Love's Travel Stop that had the ground
22 MR NEVAREZ: Here. 22 nounted sol ar panels. Those were approved by the
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1 Gty Council unaninously. And |nmanuel Baptist 1 sonething today, as a matter of fact, sent it to
2 Church had the Conditional Use for a temporary 2 the ordinance -- we had a workshop in early
3 energency shelter. That one had a | ot of resident 3 Decenber with a coupl e nenbers fromthe Pl anni ng
4 comments and a |ot of resident discussion and some 4  Commission, a couple Aty Council menbers, people
5 concerns, and sone supportive comrents, too, from 5 fromFortitude, Fire Department, just to kind of
6 residents that cane out. 6 talk about sone of the issues and sone of the
7 The Council -- and | knew this 7 things that still needed to be addressed. | tried
8 already -- there are nenbers of the ordinance 8 tointegrate some of those into the draft text that
9 comittee that would like to make some additional 9 | came up with.
10 nodifications regarding tenporary energency 10 So there's going to be an ordinance
11  shelters. Those haven't been worked out in terns 11 conmittee nmeeting that's probably going to discuss
12 of the text, so some folks wanted to continue it. 12 that, at least on sone |level. Eventually it will
13 The conclusion and bottomline was | 13 cone back here for a public hearing for an
14  they approved the Conditional Use for six nonths. 14  anmendnent to the zoning ordinance.
15 And at that point we can go back and ook at it, 15 MR RCREM  kay.
16 see how well it's working. By then we'll certainly |16 M5. COM G Thank you. So we have one new
17  have the new text changes through committee and 17 case tonight. It's Nunber 2018-12-2. It is a
18  passed by the City Council and will be in a better |18 request for a major variance for a projection, a
19 place to address this long term but -- so it was 19  bay window which has height requirenents. And it
20  approved for six nonths. 20 is for property at 444 South Main Street. W is
21 MR ROREM  Who is working on the |anguage? 21 the applicant?
22 MR HOFFMAN:  So | just finished drafting 22 M LUEHR | am

Page 8 Page 9
1 M. COM G Wuld you cone forward and be 1 this structure since | started it. She's
2 swornin? 2 conpl ained about -- to nostly the property line.
3 MR LUER |'mNornman Luehr. 3 There's been several inspections. Everything has
4 (Wtness sworn.) 4 been approved. She conpl ai ned about ny chi ey, ny
5 M. COM G Tell us the story, M. Luehr. 5 fireplace. The fire departnent came out.
6 MR LUER |'msorry? 6 Everything is approved there. Today we're dealing
7 MB. COM G Just tell us your story. 7 with the issue of -- one sole issue.
8 MR LUER (kay. | assune everyone's famliar | 8 | have a fireplace and | have a bay
9 with the issue. 9 windownext toit. The height of the bay w ndow
10 M. COMG W, we all got the packet that 10 doesn't neet the existing code which says it shoul d
11 the Planner prepared for us, including photos and a | 11 be at least 36 inches fromthe ground. Mne is 16.
12 plat. 12 Wen | built it, | had the cantilever. | pulled
13 M LUER ay. M. Hoffrman did conplete -- |13 out boards to support it, as well as the fireplace.
14 he gave it to ne this evening. He conpleted a 14 | couldn't -- what |'mbeing asked
15 report. 15 to do by the code is to tear -- to remove 20 inches
16 The issue basically is the height 16 and raise it up 20 inches which neans | have to
17 of a bay wndowthat -- | built an addition -- not |17 redesign the whole structure. The cantilever is
18 an addition. | added a fireplace and a bay window |18 gonna go. And | found out about this about four or
19 tony house. And | was gonna go through a list of |19 five nonths after | was into the project, so it was
20  things. 20 alnost conpleted at that tine.
21 M neighbor's here to offer a 21 | tried to apply for a minor
22 conplaint about this. She's been conplaining about | 22 variance and that wasn't -- | guess it didn't fit
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1 thecriteria. Sol'mhere today for this najor 1 M. COMG Dd you get a building permt for
2 variance for this 20 inch difference. 2 this project?
3 There's pictures. M. Hoffman had 3 MR LUEHR Yes. | can go through very briefly
4 acouple of pictures here. | do have sone that | 4 what | did QnJuly 19th | got a building pernit
5 could showyou if you want. Ch, this picture 5 after talking to the building inspector two tines.
6 probably shows it best, but it's hidden back here. 6 The truth is, ny wife kind of
7 Youcan't even see it at this point, how high the 7 wanted a fireplace, and | didn't want to go through
8 bay wndowis. 8 all this work so | was hoping he would deny it.
9 (Wereupon M. Hooper entered and 9 And he didn't. He says, you know, | can approve
10 joined the hearing.) 10 this, just file an application. So, okay, | did.
11 MR LUEHR Yes, that's the inside of it. It 11 | was the architect. | designed it. | built it
12 nade to be here and there was a wood storage for ny | 12 nyself.
13 fireplace here. It's behind here. Hereit is. 13 So the first conplaint cane in
14 Thisis the fireplace and this is the bay w ndow 14 August 13th about it was too close to the property
15 M neighbors put -- you can't see the bay w ndow 15 line. The building inspector cane out, neasured
16 there anynore. 16 it. It wasn't. He asked ne to put up stakes so
17 Wat |'masking for is a variance 17 anybody coul d see that it wasn't on her property.
18 toallowne to keep this so | don't have to tear it | 18 She conpl ai ned agai n on
19 apart and raise it up for what | see is no reason. 19 Septenber 26th. He cane out. He included about 15
20 M. COMG Ddyou get abuilding permit for |20 photographs. He nmeasured everything. He checked
21 this? 21 everything. He said everything was totally in
22 M LUER I'msorry. |'mhard of hearing. 22 conpliance with the codes.

Page 12 Page 13
1 Then on Cctober 2nd the fire 1 nine. | took photographs of at least four of them
2 departnent -- the fire chief cane out and talked to | 2 In fact, ny neighbor has the exact same bay w ndow
3 e, and he was out there because of, again, 3 that it doesn't neet the code requirement. It's
4 conplaints that the chinney was too high, the 4 not 36 inches above.
5 chimey was too low And he wote a report to the 5 The fact | cantileveredit, it
6 building inspector that stated in part the visit 6 would nake it inpossible for ne to rebuild it and
7 was to acquire information about the dispute; 7 keepit asolid structure. And the financial and
8 questions about property lines and height of the 8 enotional -- you know, |'ve already spent noney
9 chimmey is best left for the building and code 9 just for this hearing today. There's hours of time
10 division. 10 | put inthat I'Il never get back inny life
11 kay. So fromQctober 2nd -- about |11 dealing with this. | just -- all I'"masking for is
12 Novenber 11th | was advised | had to file a 12 to get approval so | can just keep it asit is.
13 variance. | filed a mnor variance and that wasn't | 13 MB. COM G Howclose is the southern line of
14 approved, so then | filed today's major variance. 14 your construction to the property Iine?
15 That's ny first argunent for allowing ne to keep 15 MR LUER How cl ose?
16 the structure as it is, because it cane after all 16 MS. COMG Yes.
17 other conplaints. That was like the last thing 17 MR LUBHR [|'mnot sure exactly because --
18 that sonehow screwed up because there was this code | 18 it's close, but it's -- okay. V¢'re getting
19 that nobody could explain to ne the purpose of it. |19 laughter. But it's within code. This is the
20 It was never really enforced apparently. 20 thing.
21 The bui | ding i nspector drove around | 21 The bui | di ng i nspector cane out
22 and saw nunerous buildings that were just |ike 22 nunerous tines. He says | have the right to build
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1 it asclose as | have. | nean, everything was up 1 once. As | saidin the beginning, | wes kind of
2 front and the Aty noved on it conpletely. They 2 disappointed he approved it. | wish he hadn't. |
3  had no problemwith any of it. 3 wouldn't be here now
4 M. COMG kay. 4 And | would like to point out, |
5 MR LUEHR Did you have a question? 5 had to go through all the procedures of spending
6 MR NEVAREZ Wen did you start your project? 6 100-what, 20, 30-sone dollars to have a notice in
7  Your project, when did you start building this? 7 the paper. | had to notify eight neighbors. That
8 M LUEEBHR Ckay. | didn't do anything on this | 8 was like $56 to do that. | had to go out and pay
9 until | got the approval, so | started it 9 for asignthat was in front of ny house notifying
10 July 19th. 10 people of the public hearing. | don't know who's
11 MR NEVAREZ July 19th. So you got your 11  here. The conpl ainant, ny neighbor.
12 permt on July 14th? 12 M. COM G Thank you.
13 MR LUEHR Nneteenth. The day | got it, | 13 MR LUEHR That's ny case | guess.
14  started it. 14 M. COMG (kay. Thank you.
15 MR NEVAREZ. So when you got your permt, did |15 M LUEEBHR h, | would like to point out one
16 they tell you to put the Iength of the w ndow -- 16 other thing. | didread M. Hoffman's report, and
17 M LUEHR Wat | didis, toget the permt | 17 he did say the upgrade to the encl osed porch,
18 drewdetailed for -- | drawdetailed plans of what |18 including the new bay w ndow as it has been built,
19 | was gonna do. They're sonewhere inny file. And | 19 provided an update to the appearance both
20 it shows clearly the height of the bay window the |20 internally and externally of the physical structure
21  design of it, everything. And | did discuss this 21 and has added to the use ability of the space
22 conpletely with the building inspector nore than 22 wthin the house.

Page 16 Page 17
1 Everybody who has seen this has 1 Mneis 450. I'velivedin that house 35 years.
2 saidyoudidsuch anicejob, it |ooks fantastic. 2 M daughter is 35 years old. V¢ noved in a week
3 (h, and the final recormendation by M. Hoffman, we | 3 before she was born which was Septenber 3rd, so |
4 reconmend that the Gty anend the code in the 4 |'velived in that house 35 years. |'ve had
5 future to do anay with the height requirenent for 5 probably six people who lived in that house
6 bay wndows when |ocated | ess than ten feet above 6 neighbor wise, you know
7 the ground |evel. 7 At the ting, | didn't even think
8 Ms. COM G Thank you. 8 about it. Basically we don't have an entry, but we
9 MR LUEHR I'Il answer any other questions. 9 have like a-- wecall it asun porchin ny house.
10 M. COM G Any questions, anybody? 10 | don't know what you call it. Probably -- in
11 (NO RESPONSE ) 11 fact, | was pregnant with ny son and he i s now 31.
12 M. COM G Is there anyone in the audi ence 12 He wll be 32 this nonth. Ckay. M husband and a
13 who wanted to ask a question or to speak for or 13 friend of his just took it -- and we put new
14 against this request? 14 windows init. Ve just replaced the windows. Ve
15 M. DUFFIELD  Yes. 15 put carpeting. They insulated it so we could use
16 MB. COMG Yes, ma'am You need to come 16 it year-round. Ckay. That's what we did with
17 forward and be sworn in. 17 ours.
18 Ms. DUFFIELD H. M nane is Carole Duffield. |18 VeI, theirsis alittle different.
19 | live directly to the north. Du-f-f-i-e-1-d, 19 It's step down intheirs | know Because Ester,
20 Carole, Ga-r-o-1-e, withan E 20 the original lady of the house -- |'ve been in
21 (Wtness sworn.) 21 there many tines. Ckay. So you step down a little
22 M5. DUFFIELD  Anyway, his address is 444. 22 bit inthat porch. And it was used | think as a
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1 covered entryway basically, |'mthinking what the 1 are and everything, it's right inthat room |
2 use was. Ckay. | couldn't be sure, but I'm 2 nean, he stuck his tongue out at ne and nade faces
3 thinking that's what it is. 3 at ne. | don't knowwhat's going on, but thisis
4 So anyway, | have a pool in the 4 part of what's been going on with him So anyway,
5 backyard and we were opening the pool and he's 5 | took -- and |'ve just been taking pictures al ong
6 building, whichwas inJune. It was not in July. 6 the way.
7 He was already stripping down stuff and doi ng 7 | have talked to Mke before quite
8 things. And night have even been the end of My. 8 afewtines. |'ve talked to Dave on numerous
9 But anyway, so | asked hi mwhat was going on, he 9 times. | was told by -- in fact, Dave was in
10 told ne, and | said, oh, this is not gonna work. 10 there. Herelated to me, but he didn't want ne to
11 So | went to a code neeting and 11 talk to Code anynore, so | quit calling Code.
12 Dave was there, Larry (ringa was there, Tonora, 12 There was obviously nothing they were gonna do. |
13 Phil, and there were a coupl e of other people 13 went out there. | talked to Phil two to three
14 there. And so | actually did start conplaining 14  tines, you know, in the parking ot and in the
15 back in June about the whol e thing, because | have |15 building.
16 pictures dating back to maybe August. He has 16 And then | started researching some
17 approxinmately | would say a foot and a half of ny 17 nyself. And then | have a friend that al so works
18 property line. 18 for Sauk Village Code. And what | was told was,
19 Now, ny question, especially on 19 ny -- it'snot just the window It's the whole
20 this bay wndowis, you can see -- | took a picture | 20 bunp out or whatever it's called. | have an
21 out ny wndow Heiswthinthree feet of ny 21 aversion to the whole thing for the nere reason of
22 windowwhen | look out there. Were ny conputers 22 it's esthetically -- plus, I'mgoing to |ose

Page 20 Page 21
1 property val ue of ny house. 1 to himafterwards.
2 | did put up a six-foot high vinyl 2 And | know Mke was down there.
3 fence right down ny property. MNow ny fence is six | 3 But | didn't see you down there. But |'ve seen the
4 inches in off the property line. And | can show 4 young guy fromQCode driving by and he'll drive up
5 you pictures. Soif you go six nore inches, you're | 5 the alley. But |'ve never seen anybody go in the
6 onny property line. So he's probably a foot and a | 6 house nyself so | don't know for sure that's what
7 half on ny property line with this bunp out. 7 happened.
8 Now; he evened out the floor. He 8 M problemisn't just with the
9 cut out awall or something to put a slide door 9 window | don't like -- | do have a bay w ndow
10 into, and evened out the ceiling. And | can see 10 And | did go out and neasure it and it is three
11  through because ny back bedroomeven looks intoit. |11 feet off the ground. That house was built in 1952
12 Toneit is nore than a bunp out. It's a room 12 though, and that was there when we noved in
13 addition. Ckay. 13 35 years ago. So, | nean, | don't see how -- |
14 I, nyself, have never seen Code out |14 didn't even doit, so | don't know what that issue
15 there looking at it. |'ve seen themdrive by. M |15 could be. You know it's in ny kitchen. V¢ ve
16 living roomis in the front of the house. M 16 always just had it. V& just replaced the w ndows,
17 kitchenis in the front of the house. |'mretired. | 17 oh, | want to say four years ago because ny husband
18 | do work sone, you know | do do sone work 18 was still alive then.
19 depending on what |'mdoing. | do travel alot, 19 | don't think the whole issue -- |
20 too. But tothis day, |I've never seen anybody go 20 don't think the whole thing is up to code. M
21 inside there, other than the fire narshall or 21 understanding when | read the code, because they're
22 whoever it was that went inthere. And | didtalk |22 telling ne because it does not go to the ground it
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1 isnot aroomaddition, it is not anything to do 1 hip. Soit'sreallyclose. And | see where it --
2 withthe property line. Were | read the various 2 oops. Ckay. You can see where it does not go to
3 codes -- and | still can't figure out which one 3 the ground. But it's a finished roominside. |
4  Kankakee is actual |y using because there are quite 4 don't know | woul d categorize it anything other
5 afewout there. But it says fromthe roof line -- | 5 than that.
6 andny friend fromSauk Village told ne it's from 6 MR RCREM (Can we see your other photos?
7 building to building. 7 Ms. DUFFIELD. You sure can. | got tons of
8 So, | nean, fromhimto ny fence -- | 8 them
9 if you want to see the pictures, | can gladly show | 9 MR RCREM  Thanks.
10 you these. But fromhimto ny fence is not -- the |10 (A brief pause was had.)
11 one | took -- | just took it the other day because |11 M. DUFFIELD: Wul d you guys like to see them
12 it was snowing. But the one | took -- yeah. Ckay. |12 too? Ckay. |I'll bring it over. Mke, you' ve been
13 Thisis fromthe alley. This is fromthe alley 13 there. You've seenit also.
14 looking -- that white fence is mne. 14 MR AMES. (kay. The fence that you put up,
15 MR NEVAREZ This is your fence? 15 was that existing before he started?
16 M5. DUFFIELD  Yeah, that is ny fence. That's |16 Ms. DUFFIELD No. | put it up when all this
17 the addition. And | had ny house surveyed al so. 17 started.
18 Sony fence is actually six inches in because 18 MR AMES. So you can't actually see -- if you
19 that's howthey have to put it up according to 19 sit inyour roomand | ook out your w ndow --
20 code. Sothat is pretty darn close to ny property |20 Ms. DUFFIELD. Ch, no. | can look right into
21 line. 21  his house. See, it cones to the end of ny sun
22 Here, 1'll showyou. | got a bad 22 porch. | can even ook out the back bedroomw ndow
Page 24 Page 25
1 andseeit. 1 intention of doing that, you know
2 MR AMES: It looks like the fence is cut in 2 As far as ny privacy fence, |'ve
3 half of it. 3 got a pool in ny backyard, sol'mglad | didit for
4 MB. DUFFIELD No, it does not. It covers his, | 4 that reason alone. And it cost me $7500 to do it.
5 but not nine. 5 I'mretired, you know He's belly aching about
6 MR AMES. It covers his. 6 noney. WlI, | am too, sorta, because | woul dn't
7 M. DUFFIELD Rght. But then what happens 7 have done it unless he did what he had.
8 is, you go another six inches over on that -- 8 Wit. dve ne that one back, that
9 Dbecause |'msix inches within ny property line. So| 9 onein your hand. That |ooks like it mght have
10 it's pretty darn close. 10 been -- I'mnot sure. Yeah, this is ny window |
11 M/ question is, is -- ny question 11 look right into there. M desk is right here.
12 is, isif thisis allowed to happen all the tine, | |12 MR NEVAREZ But he can't see in your house.
13  nean, if everybody in the neighborhood -- what if | |13 Ms. DUFFIELD.  Sure he can. M/ windows are
14 put a bunp out on mne? | nean, we would have a 14 clear. | nean, |'ve got blinds and everything.
15 heck of a mess. | nean, we really would. And 15 That's not the issue. But it's just -- do you have
16  everybody can use nore space. 16  sone questions for me? | could give you a point of
17 M problemis, is | don't 17 view
18 understand because it goes to the ground, he's 18 (Tal king outside of the record.)
19 still infringing upon air space so to speak, you 19 MR HOFFMAN  Carole, we have to -- anything
20 know | just -- it's not eye appealing. It 20 you explain needs to be explained to the whol e
21 doesn't match the rest of the house, unless he's 21 Cormissi on.
22 going to paint it. | don't know whether he has an |22 M5, DUFFIELD Ckay. Wiat he did was --
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1 MR HOFFMANE And if you coul d speak into the 1 Ms. COM G If the construction had conplied

2 nike because we're recording, that woul d be ideal. 2 withthe requirement that it be at least 30 inches

3 Ms. DUFFIELD. Ch, |'msorry. Ckay. Wat he 3 off the ground --

4 didwas, he had the fireplace right up here towards | 4 M RCREM Thirty-six.

5 the front, and then there's like a V, and then 5 M. COM G Thirty-six.

6 there's three windows. And the one window actually | 6 M5. DUFFIELD  Yeah, | still wouldn't be happy.

7 istohis woden wall. Andit's aVthere. It's 7 1 don't want that whole bunp out there. To ne

8 got no -- and now you know, ny fence is there so 8 it -- | nean, for instance on -- | talked to a

9 there's probably even a little less view 9 realtor also. It's gonna take away fromny

10 | don't quite understand the whole |10 property values. Wen sonebody cones in and | ooks

11 situation how-- if there was a lot of thought put |11 at that -- | nean, you know |'ve got blinds there

12 intoit, | don't knowwhy he placed it like he did. | 12 and everything. | could shut them but | need the

13 | just -- | don't know the purpose of it other than | 13 light in that roomto work, you know So | -- it's

14 extra space. And they say it's not a room 14  gonna detract. | nean, |'mlosing on both ends of

15 addition, so -- 15 this.

16 And ny understanding also is, 16 M5. COM G | understand your point. But if

17 is two years ago when Chris was in office he 17 the thing had been done in full conpliance, your

18 tried to get this approved and they woul d not 18 conplaints --

19 approve it, so -- because he is -- one of ny best 19 M5. DUFFIELD | question the conpliance on it

20 friends, it's her brother, so that's how ! know 20 though, the whole conpliance onit. | still do. |

21  some of this stuff, so -- do you have a question? 21 question it neets too close to the property line.

22 | canseeit. 22 | question it not going down to the ground. |
Page 28 Page 29

1 question the bay w ndow aspect of it. 1 pictures, you have the right to do so. Wuld you

2 You know to knock out part of the 2 like to see her pictures?

3 wall toput asliding door in so that you can 3 M LUER Yes, | would liketo. Dol also

4 use -- you know, utilize the fireplace, | nean, 4 have a chance to respond?

5 there woul d have been other ways to doit. He 5 MR HCFFMANE You will, but after the rest of

6 could have done it right with the roomhe had 6 the testinony is done.

7 there, you know 7 M. COMG M. Qawford, did you want to

8 MB. COM G The sliding door faces the rear? 8 speak?

9 Ms. DUFFIELD.  The sliding door faces -- it was | 9 M CRAWCRD | do.

10 like where the entryway was in the front of their 10 (Wtness sworn.)

11  house there. No. It's like on the side of their 1 M CRAWCRD |'mbDavid Gaword. |'mThird

12 house. Qiginally this was like a porch, a 12 Wérd Alderman, and then | also sit in on the Chair

13 covered -- enclosed porch | guess | would put it. 13 of the Code Departnent. This case actually cane to

14 MR HCOFFMAN  The sliding door is actually part |14 us. It was | think --

15 of the structure, so it goes between this and that. | 15 Ms. DUFFIELD It was in June.

16 MB. COMG Ckay. 16 MR CRAWCRD: | think it was in June, in our

17 MR AMVES Dave has a comment. 17 June neeting.

18 M. DUFFIELD. Yeah, Dave would like to speak 18 M5. DUFFIELD It was May or June.

19 also. 19 MR CRAWCRD: W'Il say either May or June,

20 M5. COM G |s there anyone el se who wanted to | 20 but | believe it was a June neeting, and the

21  speak? M. Crawford. 21 project already started. Wen the project started

22 MR HOFFMAN M. Luehr, if you went to see her | 22 there was -- | don't knowif you want to see that.
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Page 30

Page 31

1 That was when it first started and that's the 1 there was a special use or a variance on this

2 little build out. 2 project. And that woul d have been back in probably

3 So anyways, when it started, inour | 3 August.

4 neeting in June that we had it was brought up. And | 4 From August to now, until he's

5 one of the points that was brought up, that you had | 5 alnost done, they let himfinish, keep on working,

6 to have a five or six foot variance fromthe 6 working with the project, where the project

7 property line. Andin that picture it wll show 7  probably shoul d have been put on hold until he cane

8 that -- | don't know where the property line was 8 tothis neeting and either got cleared to keep

9 before they built, but that little build out cane 9 doing the work, or if they would have not okayed

10 closer to the property line. That went on. They 10 it, that's where he woul d have been with not having

11 were kind of going back and forth. 11  seven or $8,000 in the project. | don't knowif

12 V¢'|| fast forward a little bit. 12 you've seen that at all, but that's when they first

13 There was an email that was sent out fromMKke that | 13 started the project.

14 was sent to Tonora and to Phil. And they had two 14 M. COM G Thank you.

15 options in this case; one was to cone apply for a 15 MR CRAWCRD So if they woul d have came here

16  special variance, the other one was to stop the 16 and either got turned down or if he was okay to go

17 project and wait until you get approval . 17 along with the project, he wouldn't have had as

18 (ne of the problens was -- and | 18 nmuch invested into this.

19 wish sonebody or Tomora woul d have been here from | 19 Like | said, I'mjust the A dernan

20 (ode -- but they admtted in a neeting we had with |20 and the person who works on Code. Code probably

21 the nayor that they nade a mistake and shoul d not 21 shoul d have been here at this so Tonora coul d have

22 have given thema pernit to start the project until |22 probably filled youin alittle bit on why they
Page 32 Page 33

1 gave the pernmt or why they let himkeep going on 1 M. DUFFIELD  Both properties were.

2 wththe project. That | don't know why. 2 MR CRAWCRD  She had hers surveyed for the

3 M5. HOOD So what you're saying is that it was | 3 fence. | don't knowif he did or not.

4 a mstake? 4 MR LUEHR | have one just exactly like that.

5 MR CRAWCRD It was a mistake to probably -- 5 MB. HOOD Did you have it surveyed?

6 they admtted Code nade a mistake on giving the 6 M LUEHR | had it surveyed before | even

7 pernmt to keep going on with the project when the 7 started this. | brought the survey down to the

8 project should have been put at a halt until they 8 building inspector and showed him The stakes were

9 cane to this neeting here. 9 clearly there. He knew where they were. | put

10 M5 HOOD But it was allowed still. 10  themup.

1 M CRAWCRD It was allowed. Now-- nowthe |11 MR CRAWCRD And so there's an issue with

12 dty of Kankakee is in a tough situation with, he's | 12 Code on the project.

13 got alot invested into this project, he was 13 MR HOPER For clarification, what is the --

14  allowed to do this project. 14 fromthe property line to the end of construction,

15 And, | nean, you can vaguely see 15 what is the --

16 it's probably 12 inches fromthe property line. 16 M CRAWCRD Mke, what isit? Isit five

17 So, | nean, Aty is in a tough spot. They 17 foot or is it six foot?

18 either -- | don't know what they're gonna do. 18 MR HOFFMAN  So there is supposed to be a

19  Soneone is probably gonna get sued, one party or 19 five-foot side yard setback. Ckay. The structure

20 the other. 20 that was there previously already extended into

21 M5. HOOD  But the property was still surveyed |21 that setback though.

22 as well, correct, interns of the fence? 22 MR CRAWCRD So this extended it what, say
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Page 34 Page 35
1 another three feet? 1 would get grandfathered in, and no construction
2 MR HOFFMAN A bay windowis allovwed to extend | 2 shoul d have been al | owed in any addition what soever
3 two and a half feet fromthe principal building. 3 unless they cane and tried to nodify. So what
4 And this probably extends about two and a half feet | 4 they're doing nowis nodifying the whol e structure
5 fromthe structure. 5 of that side line.
6 M CRAWCRD So put it within probably a 6 V¢ can't very well nake the
7 foot. 7 petitioner absorb a loss for sonething that our
8 MR HCFFMAN  That's probably about right. 8 Code Departnent didn't follow through. They still
9 MR HOPER How often have you seen -- you 9 had a chance to go out and stop it before he
10 know, to ne, obviously when sonething is 10 conpleted it.
11 approved -- then they have tear it back down? 11 MR CRAWCRD: Wi ch probably shoul d have
12 MR CRAWCRD:  |'ve only been around four 12 done --
13 years. | haven't seen this situation in four 13 MR AMES: That's what |'msaying.
14 years, so -- you know, Mke's been around inalot |14 MR CRAWCRD:  -- shoul d have been done. And
15 of different comunities. 15 if he woul d have cane here, he might have gotten
16 MR HOFFMAN | can only think of one scenario |16 approved to go ahead on the project. But who knows
17 where it was approved and later required to be 17 what woul d have happened.
18 taken back out. And it's unusual . 18 MR AMES. And nowit's already --
19 MR CRAWCRD Rght. 19 MR CRAWCRD Rght. It's water under the
20 MR AMES: | have a statenent to make. If the |20 bridge.
21 structure is already inpeding on the setback, the 21 MR AMES. But |I'msaying the structure is
22 side line setback, the conplete structure, that 22 already intruding on the side line setback.

Page 36 Page 37
1 M CRAWCRD  (Qorrect. 1 has to do with where the foundations are, you know
2 MR HOPER | don't knowif Dave knows or 2 And | think we need to unpack this alittle bit to
3 Mke, is her building inpeding on that five-foot 3 Dbe able to understand where to go.
4 side setback as well? Because she says it's three 4 | nean, the first thing has to do
5 feet fromher w ndow 5 with the encroachment of that structure on to the
6 MR HCFFMAN Fromher testinony | would assume | 6 side yard setback, you know assunming five feet, in
7 so, but | didn't neasure it or look at it that 7 that neighborhood, just for purposes of
8 close. 8 conversation. | nean, five feet or six feet, it's
9 MR HOPER | heard fromher testinony she's a| 9 not going to be much of a difference. There's an
10 foot and a half off the property Iine. 10 encroachnent no matter what in terns of what that
11 Ms. DUFFIELD. No, no, no. Because ny fence 11 is.
12 goes out past where ny house ends. 12 So the thinking of Gode is quite
13 MR HOPER You said it's three feet from 13 inportant to me on that. | nean, first of all, as
14 window to wi ndow, which would indicate you're a 14 far as zoning is concerned, if thisis a
15 foot and a half off as well. 15 pre-existing condition and it encroaches upon that,
16 M. DUFFELD No.  I've got five feet there, 16 it's eligible to do so, to ny understanding.
17 because | neasured it. 17 MR HOFFMAN  Correct.
18 MR HOPER (Qoul d be. 18 MR RCREM You know, it's eligible to do so.
19 MR RCREM CQoul d be on the survey docunent. 19 Wat happens beyond that is another question. So,
20 MR AMES. Qoul d be on the survey docunent. 20 you know the fact that your porch, you know, which
21 M ROREM (h a plat. Gould be proof that 21 is part of your house, you know, encroached upon
22 fromwhere your house is -- because a |ot of this 22 that side yard sethack is an acceptabl e
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Page 38 Page 39
1 pre-existing condition. So we can say that close 1 the enclosure, if that can be justified, what
2 isreal, you know It can be a straight wall, it 2 remains is the encroachment upon -- the
3 can be a chimey, be a bay w ndow whatever it 3 encroachnment of the bay windowin terns of falling
4 nmight be. But right there where that wall hits, 4 Dbelowthat three-foot line, you know And thereis
5 you know, and goes up fromthe slab that you have 5 an unhappy bargain that is presented by that one
6 is an acceptable pre-existing condition. So we 6 thing that we're hanging on right now whichis
7 have that that we've got to deal wth. 7 nobody's going to be happy.
8 The grey area for ne is inwhat is 8 M CRAWCRD W, and once again, it was --
9 the allowabl e work that can be done on that 9 it'saninjustice to himand an injustice to her.
10 pre-existing condition. And | would like to hear 10 | nean, this shoul d have been addressed six nonths
11  what Code has to say about that. | didtalk to 11  ago when the project first started, so --
12 Phil today, but | think that for the record that 12 MR RCREM WlI, go on with where you' re going
13 shoul d probably be sonething that we hear fromCode | 13 with this. The unhappy circunstance is having to
14 about. 14 nodify that storage area underneath the bay w ndow
15 MR CRAWCRD  Wéll, I'msurprised that one of |15 and push it back in so that -- and that could be
16 themweren't here tonight. 16  done, you know, to push it back in so that that
17 MR AMES. V¢ didn't hear you. 17 three feet was maintained. But we've al so heard,
18 MR CRAWCRD | said |'msurprised that one of | 18 you know, that's an insufficient circunstance --
19 themaren't here tonight to fill youinonit from |19 insufficient resolution, you know
20 (ode. 20 And so, you know, here we are, you
21 MR RCREM You know, if that can be justified, |21 know | look at it as, who's going to be happy?
22 you know, the work that was done in nodification of | 22 And that, you know, the variance woul d not have to
Page 40 Page 41
1 be requested shoul d you nodi fy that bay w ndow 1 part of the principal building? And | think we've
2 height. But your encroachment concern would not be | 2 interpreted it as it does, but it's not crystal
3 resol ved because the only thing that we're tal king 3 clear, to be honest.
4 about as far as the Plan Conmittee tonight is this 4 MB. COM G Do we have a photo of how the
5 variance, which is the variance for the bottom of 5 house appeared before all of this started?
6 the bay window Al of the rest of this stuff is 6 MR LUEHR Here.
7 really not sonething we even tal ked about. V¢ are, | 7 MR AMVES Dave, do you have a photo before
8 hut -- 8 this started?
9 MR CRAWCRD But it shoul d have been 9 MR LUEHR Here is the photos if you want to
10 addressed way before this. Ckay. Thank you. 10 see them
11 MR HCOFFMAN And just for clarification, so 11 MR ECKHARDT: There's one in there.
12 per the code, both a fireplace and a bay w ndow can | 12 MR AMES: There's one in there.
13 project two and a half feet into the setback area 13 MR RCREM Mke, how do we determine the
14 fromthe prinary building structure, so -- 14 answer to that question? How do we deternine, you
15 M AES Soit's legal again. 15 know, the side line setback, the encroachnent of
16 MR HCOFFMAN  Yes. 16 the pre-existing condition? You know what
17 MB. COMG But that inplies two and a hal f 17 constitutes, legally constitutes the existing
18 feet fromthe five-foot setback, not two and a half | 18 sidewall condition that is, you know the point of
19 feet fromsonething less than a five-foot setback. |19 this whole thing?
20 MR HOFFMAN  Yes. The debat e woul d be what 20 MR HOFFMAN Vel I, so the survey that was
21 you consider the principal building. Rght? And 21 subnitted does showthat the building sits into the
22 does that enclosed porch that was there count as 22 setback area already, so -- and it was consi dered
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1 grandfathered essentially, right, because it was in | 1 construction?
2 the setback. 2 MB. COMG W, that would be interesting.
3 M RCREM  kay. 3 MR LUEHR This was the inside. There was a
4 MR HOFFMAN  So that shows it at | believe 4 Dbay wndow She could look in and see in here
5 only afour-foot setback. Let nme doubl e check 5 already before | started construction. This was
6 that. 6 fromthe outside. |'mtearing down the -- the
7 M. COM G Thank you. That is -- but is 7w ndow here, w ndow here, w ndow here.
8 there one before this was done? 8 M. COMG Ckay. Thank you. Wose photos
9 M CRAWCRD No, | didn't have one before it 9 wvere these?
10 started. 10 MB. DUFFELD.  These are nine.
11 M. COM G Thank you. 11 M. COM G Thank you. That was very hel pful.
12 MR CRAWCRD  Yep. 12 MR AMES: Looking at the plat survey.
13 MR HCFFMAN | thought there was a plat of 13 Ms. DUFFIELD. Do you have a copy of that for
14 survey in here. | had one. 14 nme? | don't have a copy of --
15 M. COM G This? 15 MR HOFFMAN O what?
16 MR HOFFMAN  Yes. So what does that show? 16 M5. DUFFIELD  The plat survey? Like this. |
17 3.97 is the separation. 3.8. So that existing 17 don't have one of these.
18 porch that was there encroached into the setback 18 MR HOFFMAN | have an extra, that you're
19 about a foot and a quarter. There was about -- 19 welcome to look at that.
20 there was 3.8 feet between the property |ine and 20 Ms. DUFFIELD. Gould 1? I'Il give it back to
21 that existing porch before he did anything. 21 you.
22 MR LUER You wanted to see before we started | 22 MR HCFFMAN  Yes.
Page 44 Page 45
1 M. COMG M. Ames. 1 there.
2 MR AMVES. nthe plat survey, | don't know is | 2 MR RCREM How does that work, you know what |
3 this Tyson's survey? 3 nean?
4 MR HOFFMAN  Wio did the survey? | just 4 MR AVES |'msorry. She can't hear you.
5 handed her ny copy. 5 M RIREM That's anirregularity. Wit a
6 M. DUFFIELD. M ne was Pi ggush. 6 mnute. Wit amnute. Is that asix and not a
7 MR HOFFMAN  Yeah, but that's not the one | 7 five?
8 have in the packet. 8 MB. COM G Is there anyone else in the
9 M. Luehr, do you know who did your | 9 audience who wanted to speak?
10  survey, who prepared your survey of the property? 10 (NO RESPONSE )
11 MR LUEHR M survey was done by Tyson. 11 MR HOFFMAN No.  Ckay.
12 M. COM G  kay. 12 M. COM G Is this off the record?
13 MR AMES. (kay. It shows that the structure 13 MR HCFFMAN  Chip, sunmarize when you' re done
14 is ten feet fromthe property line, and then this 14 discussing it with Normso we can have it on the
15 porch areais five feet. So that -- 15 record. Ckay?
16 MR HFFMAN VeI T, no. 16 M RIREM (kay. So what we're reading
17 MR AVES So | don't know 17 here -- it's difficult to understand, but what's
18 MR HOFFMAN  Here's 3.79 feet between the 18 happening is the main house itself is ten feet from
19 property line and that structure. That's the 19 the property line. Ckay. It's ten feet north of
20 extension. 20 the property line. The porch itself, if you I|ook
21 MR AMES. It says five feet. 21 at the dinension on the drawings, it either could
22 MR HOFFMAN V@l 1, that's only 3.79 between 22 be five or six feet. I'mtending to think --
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1 MR LUEHR It's about six. 1 M. COM G If not, we'll close the public
2 M ROIREM [|'mtending to think it's six. 2 hearing. And then we'll ask, how does the
3 kay. Sothat neans that there's a four-foot 3 Conmission want to proceed?
4 difference between -- 4 MR HFFMAN  Madane Chair, if | could real
5 M LR 3.97. 5 quick. Sowedidprovide a neno in here. And | do
6 MR RCREM W thought that was five feet. 6 want to enphasize | guess, the issue of the
7 M LR Soit's already beyond. 7 variance really isn't even so much the
8 M RCREM It's already encroached, yes. So 8 encroachnent. V& haven't interpreted that it
9 we were thinking maybe it didn't, but actually it 9 violates that. But it does clearly violate the
10 still does. Soit's -- you know, soit's slightly |10 requirenent of the code that a bay w ndow has to be
11 less than four feet fromthe property line to the 11 three feet off the ground. It clearly isn't.
12 existing addition. Ckay. 12 Now, why does the code require it
13 M. COM G So before this new project began, |13 to be three feet off the ground? To be perfectly
14 the house was al ready encroaching on this required |14 honest, |I'mnot entirely sure. And you can drive
15  setback. 15 around that nei ghborhood and see lots of other bay
16 MR HFFMAN  Yes. 16w ndows that do extend farther than three feet.
17 MR ROREM The required setback is reportedly |17 The applicant provided sone. | did notice sone
18 five feet. It's encroaching a little over a foot. 18 others as | was driving around the nei ghbor hood.
19 M5. COM G Thank you for clarifying that. 19 Soit's not an uncommon thing to do that.
20 I's there anyone who wanted to speak | 20 So regarding that three-foot issue,
21 about this further? 21 we were reconmendi ng approval of that. But |
22 (NO RESPONSE ) 22 honestly woul d suggest ultimately you take that out
Page 48 Page 49
1 of the code because it clearly hasn't been enforced | 1 tonight, you're wel come to now
2 historically in the coomunity and | don't see a 2 MR LUEHR | would like to respond to a couple
3 good reason for it. So ultimately | think we 3 of comments ny neighbor saidin terns of -- the
4 shoul d probably change that in the code. 4 existing structure was all windows. | nean, she
5 M. COM G If we vere to make that change, we | 5 says now, you know she can see in. She could see
6 could also say but projections of bay w ndows and 6 everything before.
7 chimeys are not allowed if there's less than the 7 Ms. DUFFIELD It wasn't a living space though
8 required setback. 8 before.
9 MR HCFFMAN  You certainly coul d make that 9 MR LUEHR Excuse ne. |'mtalking. The fact
10 clarification, yes. 10 that -- she criticized it because it doesn't natch.
11 M. COMG But that's an issue for -- 11 | used cedar wood. |'mletting it dry. 1'mgoing
12 MR HCFFMAN - Anot her day. 12 topaint it to natch the house eventually.
13 M. COM G -- future consideration. The 13 The issue tonight -- | wasn't
14 issue before us tonight is the request of the 14 prepared for any of this other thing. | was
15 variance. 15 prepared for the height of this windowin terns
16 MR HCOFFMAN  And just procedurally | guess, we |16  of --
17  shoul d give the petitioner a chance to respond back | 17 MR HOIFFMAN  Under st and.
18 to any other coments that were made, if you so 18 MR LUEHR Because | was lead to believe this
19 would like to. 19 was not an issue all along. | nean, | was
20 M LUEEBHR [|'msorry. |'mhard of hearing. 20 constantly assured the fireplace was not an i ssue.
21 MR HOFFMWN No. So if you want to respond to | 21 It's sticking out 30 inches, too. | don't know
22 anything that any of the other people testified to |22 what else to say.
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1 MR HCFFMAN  That's fine. 1 losellose situation no matter what for both of you.
2 M LUEHR | just leave it in your hands and 2 So, you know, it doesn't really nake any difference
3 you'll nake a decision. Thank you. 3 which way we go because of that, because neither
4 MR HCFFMAN | understand. | was just giving 4 one of you are going to really have any
5 you the opportunity. 5 satisfactioninterns of what's going on with this.
6 M. COM G Thank you. M. Rorem you 6 I'mlooking for a way that coul d
7 suggested earlier that it would be hel pful to hear 7 resolve this thing in a way that there was some
8 fromCode Enforcenent staff. 8 relief for the two of you. But at this point, I'm
9 MR RCREM  Yes. 9 not seeing relief. M concern in bringing the
10 M5 COMG Dd you want to defer a decision? |10 building inspector inis that | don't know given
11 M RCREM W, again, I'Il go back to a 11 the circunstances, that anything other than the
12 previous thing that | said because | amtending to |12 raising of that portion of the wall is sonething
13  lean toward that. 13 that he's going to be able to say could be
14 The situation that | see right now | 14 enforced.
15 s that the only thing that we really can rule upon | 15 The encroachnent on the side wall,
16 this evening is the variance. The only thing that |16 the encroachment of the setback, all that kind of
17 isinvolved inthis variance is the height of this |17 stuff seens as though it will stand, that that will
18  wi ndow 18 stand up. And so consequently, we have a situation
19 And that fromwhat |'ve heard you 19 where if we bring Code in, the one thing that we
20 all say, if thisis granted, neither one of you are | 20 night have to do is to say, okay, the wood storage
21 going to be happy, and if it's not granted, neither | 21 box bel ow the bay w ndow has to be filled in and it
22 one of you are going to be happy. Soit's a 22 has to be sone way to cantilever that |oad out and
Page 52 Page 53
1 get that thing up. And that woul d be the only 1 look at those.
2 change that even with Code coming here mght 2 MR AMES: | don't think even if Code cane in,
3 happen. 3 | thinkit's after the fact. It would clarify some
4 M. COM G But that wouldn't really give any 4 things, but it still won't -- the bay w ndow -- I
5 mterial relief to the unhappy nei ghbor. 5 nmean the fireplace --
6 M ROREM No. None. There's no relief for 6 MR HIFFMAN  Yeah.
7 either one of you. There's the dilemma. 7 MR AMES. It's not going to change the
8 MB. COMG WII, if the variance is granted, 8 variance that he's asking for.
9 then the property owners are satisfied. They' ve 9 MR HOFFMAN Right. Wat they' re asking for
10 got their inprovenent retroactively okayed. 10 tonight --
11 M5, HOOD  Correct. 11 MR AVES Is a variance.
12 M RCREM Yeah. |f the variance were 12 MR HCFFMAN | identified when | |ooked at it
13 granted, yes. 13  and sawthat it didn't conply with the hei ght
14 M. COMG If it is. But if it isn't, the 14 setback and the variance, so | raised that issue
15 expense and work woul d be considerabl e and the 15 because there were concerns with the fireplace.
16  inprovenent woul d be negligible. 16 The first question that | was asked wes, can the
17 MR RCREM  Lh-huh. 17 fireplace project into the side yard setback? And
18 MR HFFMAN  So the code does, you know, 18 without seeing any pictures or anything, | |ooked
19 outline the criteria that you need to consider. 19 at the code and, yes, it can project into the side
20 And we did outline those in ny meno. | don't know, | 20 yard setback.
21 | don't think | need to go through each one 21 Then the issue of the bay w ndow
22 individually, but they're there so you can take a 22 came up and | looked at it. And | actually went
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Page 54 Page 55
1 out and | ooked at the property. The petitioner 1 MB. DUFFIELD  Yeah, | did that. Fence Above
2 allowed ne to cone in and | ook at what he had 2 the Rest, Steve Styck didit. And | nade sure
3 constructed and everything. It was clear that, you | 3 everything was proper because | didn't want
4  know it wasn't three feet off the ground, and so 4 anything to cone back on ne. | basically, probably
5 that's when we identified that we needed to have 5 would not have put that fence up if | didn't have
6 himapply for a variance. 6 all these other things going on, you know, wth the
7 MR RCREM | have a question for you. |Is your | 7 property line, et cetera, and what's called the
8 primary concern the view? 8 infringenent or the --
9 M. DUFFIELD. M primary concernis it's gonna | 9 MR RCREM  Encroachnent.
10 hurt ny property values. |'ve already had that 10 Ms. DUFFIELD  -- the encroachment. Thank you.
11 looked at. You know, | nean, I'Il be honest with 11 But now | nean, | literally work out of that room
12 you. For 35 years |'ve lived there for -- ny son 12 |'mon ny conputer a lot, et cetera. Andit's
13 is now3l (kay. Say he was ten years old. For 13 right there.
14 ten years while | cut the grass, we cut it back 14 And they say, well, you can't | ook
15 along the thing and everything el se. V¢ didn't 15 into his thing. | could look intoit before but it
16 care, you know It was no big deal. 16 wasn't aliving area so to speak. He had a front
17 But now that he built that up, 17 door. They didn't sit out there. They didn't do
18 okay, and | knew-- he nade a conment at one tine 18 anything out there. If | sawhimsit out there,
19 where the property line was so that's why | had it |19 it was always in the backyard. | never saw himon
20 surveyed. Wen | had ny fence put up, | had it 20 the porch the whole tine. And mne openly -- |
21  done with a reputable firm 21 nean, |'ve got probably a five-foot opening into
22 MR RCREM You had the fence surveyed? 22 nine, you know So, | nean, it's part of ny living
Page 56 Page 57
1 roomso to speak, always has been. 1 wouldn't look into that roomand nodify the fence,
2 So besides that it was horrible and | 2 that's another way to resolve the situation. It's
3 it's soclose tony property that | can look in 3 up to you whether or not --
4 there, plus ny house val ues are gonna deval ue, plus | 4 MB. DUFFIELD Vel I, |'ve already spent $7500
5 | put up afence like that because | just wanted it | 5 to put ny fence in.
6 done with, | wanted everything on the property 6 MR RCREM  Sure.
7 line. And | had renters on the other side so that 7 Ms. DUFFIELD You know what? This was ny
8 was another thing | |ooked at, too, you know 8 thoughts, right, wong or indifferent, but I'm
9 But, yeah, it's -- and plus, 9 thinking if the variance isn't granted maybe he
10 it's -- no offense, but it's aesthetically not eye |10 would just take that part down. | nean, if | had
11 appealing. | just -- | don't understand this V 11 tolive wth the fireplace, ah, | could do that,
12 thing there. And then once -- | understand where 12 but that other part, | have a problemwth it.
13 a-- | understand where the fireplace encroached 13 | nean, he put in a back door to go
14 upon, you know, the property. Doesn't have a thing | 14 out the back door. Wiich, | understand. He has a
15 underneath it. But the bay w ndow situation, I 15 dog. |'ve had pets, too. | understand that. It's
16 question that. That whole jet out of that | 16 so handy just to let themout that door rather than
17 question. 17 to have to walk with them you know So |
18 M RIREM @ out onalinb here. If youask |18 understand all of that. But that bay w ndow thing,
19 for a variance -- 19 it's an eyesore, I'Il be honest with you. The
20 Ms. DUFFIELD | don't need one. 20 whole structure to ne is an eyesore.
21 MR RCREM WeII, give ne a mnute. |f you ask |21 MR RCREM (ne of the problens we have, | was
22 for avariance to have the fence tall enough so you | 22 really sort of stretching outside the boundaries of
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Page 58

Page 59

1 what we do. V¢'rereally not convened to offer 1 understand that other part. And, | nean, if it

2 solutions. 2 wasn't a part of the house that | was in so much,

3 Ms. DUFFIELD. Rght. | understand that. 3 who cares, you know But every tine | drive up,

4 M RCREM So, you know, | sort of stretched 4 you know -- and anybody who's been over there says,

5 at that point. 5 what is going on there? | nean, | have nei ghbors

6 Ms. DUFFIELD  Yeah. Personally, other than 6 back here. They're the sane. Yeah, they were -- |

7 himtaking it down, | really don't seeit. 7 don't know | just can't put it into words.

8 MR RCREM Wat we have to do is make a 8 | personal |y though, 1'mgonna -- |

9 determnation based upon the facts. And | go back 9 was going to Code back in June. |'ve been dealing

10 tony earlier statement. | don't think anybody's 10 with Code and trying to get sonething done. It was

11 going to be happy with the results. But, you know, |11 inpossible. Basically -- and Dave knows this. He

12 if avariance vere granted, you would be. You 12 went and net with the Miyor, and you and Tonora,

13 wouldn't have to do anything. But you would remain | 13 too. And basically they told ne not to call Code

14 dissatisfied. 14 anynore. They didn't want to deal with ne anynore.

15 M5. DUFFIELD Vel 1, | woul d probably take it 15 Mke, you know how nany tines |'ve

16 further, let's put it that way. 16 called you, you know

17 MR ROREM Sure. Wiich is your right. 17 MR HOFFMAN A few

18 M5. DUFFIELD  Yeah, | probably will. 18 M5. DUFFIELD | don't let a dead dog lie. |

19 M RCREM Al right. 19 don't. It'sne. | don't knowwhat else to say.

20 Ms. DUFFIELD.  So he coul d end up taking it 20 MR HCOFFMAN  Just for the record, so on the

21 down anyway. That is ny end vote. So the 21 signit has our office phone nunber if anybody does

22 fireplace, | can live with that. | don't 22 have any questions or anything. \¥ got one phone
Page 60 Page 61

1 call froma neighbor just asking a few questions, 1 M. COMG | did.

2 but no objections. 2 MR HFFMWN h, you did. |'msorry.

3 MR RCREM Is there any other reason that 3 MR ECKHARDT: G ahead.

4 bringing Gode in to discuss this issue would be 4 MR AVES:  Anybody?

5 beneficial to the resolution? 5 MR NEVAREZZ @ ahead.

6 MR HOPER | don't think so. 6 MR AVES WIIl, | would like to nake a motion

7 MR AMES. | agree. M, personally, | don't 7 to the case PB 2018-12-2, request for a najor

8 think so. 8 variance for a bay w ndow hei ght regarding the

9 MR RCREM Al right. 9 property located at 444 South Main Street. | would

10 MR HOPER | think we're trying to make 10 like to recommend an approval of this request using

11 sonebody happy and we're not going to be able to 11 the staff recormendations. You want ne to read

12 acconplish that through any other neasure. MNothing | 12 those?

13 tonight is going to make that party happy. 13 MR HCFFMAN  Not necessary.

14 MR HCOFFMAN And just for the benefit of the 14 M. COM G You can just refer to them

15 audience, so the Planning Board is the final 15 MR AVES (kay. Reference the staff

16  recommendi ng body on a variance, so whatever their |16 recommendation one through five.

17 decisionis is the final decision. However, either |17 And also | would like to amend this

18 of you two parties woul d have the ability to appeal |18 -- not amend, but add to this notion that we

19 tothe Aty Gouncil if you chose to, whichever way |19 recommend that the Aty amend the code in the

20 it goes. 20 future to do anay fromthe height requirenents for

21 MR RCREM |'mdone. 21 bay w ndows when located less than ten feet above

22 MR HOFFMAN  dose the public hearing? 22 grade or ground |evel.
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Page 62 Page 63
1 M. COM G (ould we keep that as a separate 1 MR HCOFFMAN  Beverly Hood.
2 nmotion? 2 M5, HOOD  Yes.
3 MR HOFFMAN  Yeah, probably. 3 MR HOFFMANE  Chip Rorem
4 M. COMG Keep it sinple. Just nake another | 4 MR RCREM  Yes.
5 motion after we've acted on this first one. 5 MR HCOFFMANE  Terrance Hooper.
6 MR AVES  kay. 6 MR HOPER  Yes.
7 M. COM G Thank you. 7 MR HOFFMAN  Mictor Nevarez.
8 MR AMES: Restrict the last part of the 8 MR NEVAREZ  Yes.
9 nmotion. 9 MR HOFFMAN And Chair Gowhi g.
10 M. COMG (kay. V¢ have M. Ames' 10 M5 COM G Yes.
11 recomendation -- or notion to grant the requested |11 MR HCOFFMAN  (kay. Mtion is approved six to
12 variance. Is there a second? 12 zero. Sothe variance is granted, however --
13 MR HOPER  Second. 13 MB. COM G  Seven.
14 M. COM G Seconded by M. Hooper. Any 14 MR HCFFMAN  Seven. Sorry. As | nentioned,
15 further discussion? 15 you have | believe it is seven days to file a
16 (NO RESPONSE. ) 16 request for an appeal to the Aty Gouncil if you
17 M. COMG Wuld you call the roll, please? 17  would like to.
18 Avyes vote is to grant the variance. 18 M5. DUFFIELD No probl em
19 MR HOFFMAN  Correct. WIlie Anmes. 19 MR HOFFMAN  You can give ne a call and talk
20 MR AMES: Yes. 20 through it if you want to tonorrow
21 MR HOFFMAN  Edwi n Eckhardt. 21 M. COMG MNow M. Anes, would you like to
22 MR ECKHARDT:  Yes. 22 nmake a second notion?
Page 64 Page 65
1 MR AVES | would like to make a notion that 1 MB. COMG ¢ could ask M. Hoffman to draft
2 we also recormend that the Aty amend the code in 2 specific | anguage.
3 the future to do away wth the height requirenents 3 MR AMVES  kay.
4 for bay windows when located |ess than ten feet 4 MR HOFFMAN  Yes.
5 above grade or ground level. Do away withit, the 5 M. COM G Wuld you call the roll, please?
6 height requirenent, if it's less than ten feet. 6 MR HCOFFMAN  Sure.  Mictor Nevarez.
7 M. COM G Do we want to say provided that 7 MR NEVAREZ  Here.
8 the standard setback in net? 8 MR HFFMAN  |s that yes?
9 MR AMES: The standard, yes. WII, it's ten 9 MR NEVAREZ  Yes.
10 feet. Isit five feet? 10 MR HCFFMAN  (kay. Thank you. Chip Rorem
1 MR HFFMAN  Five feet. 1 M RCREM  Yes.
12 MR AMVES: Five feet. 12 MR HCOFFMAN  Terrance Hooper.
13 M. COMG kay. |s there a second to M. 13 MR HOPER  Yes.
14 Amwes' notion? 14 MR HCFFMAN  Beverly Hood.
15 MR ECKHARDT: |'Il second. 15 M5 HOOD  Yes.
16 M. COMG Mtion by M. Anes, seconded by 16 MR HOFFMAN  Edwi n Eckhardt .
17 M. Eckhardt, to recommend a text amendnent to 17 MR ECKHARDT:  Yes.
18 revise the nininumheight requirenents for bay 18 MR HOFFMN Wilie Anmes.
19 wi ndows. 19 MR AMVES  Yes.
20 MR HOFFMAN  Ckay. 20 MR HOFFMAN  Loretto Cowhig.
21 M5. COMG Any further discussions? 21 M5. COMG Yes.
22 (NO RESPONSE. ) 22 MR HOFFMAN  Ckay.
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Page 66

Page 67

1 MB. COM G Thank you. Do we have any further | 1 back in Decenber. V¢'ve still been working on the
2 business? 2 text, so we never really actually had a public
3 MR HOFFMAN  So just a quick update on a 3  hearing, but we should continue that hearing again
4 couple of things that are going on. | have 4 until February so they don't have to republish, if
5 actually -- | think | brought copies. Veéll, 5 that's okay.
6 there's two or three ordi nance anmendrent things 6 M. COMG (h, that was on the agenda.
7 that arein the process. It's the anendnent of the | 7 MR HCFFMAN  Yeah. V¢ skipped over it.
8 tenporary energency shelter that we tal ked about 8 M. COM G This was under unfinished
9 earlier. That's in the works. 9 business, A
10 V¢ are working on an anendment to 10 MR HOFFMAN  Yes. So we shoul d conti nue that
11  the whol e adnministrative section of the zoning code | 11 to February 12th, if that's acceptable.
12 that | hope to have done in the very near future. 12 M. COM G If there's no objection, | propose
13 And we're al so working on an anendnent to address 13 that we continue that public hearing officially.
14 solar and alternate energy sources to better handle | 14 Do we have a notion to that effect?
15 that. Not only the solar gardens, but allow ng 15 MR RCREM  So noved.
16 people to have themon their own property, for 16 M. COMG Mtion by M. Rorem Do we have a
17  business purposes, and how we want to treat them 17 second?
18 for residential purposes and those kind of things. 18 MR AMES. Second.
19 Sothose are all in the works. 19 M5. COMG Seconded by M. Ares. Al in
20 And the other thing that we should |20 favor?
21 do tonight formally | think, Fortitude Community 21 ALL BOARD MEMBERS: (I n unison) Aye.
22 Qutreach had applied for a text amendnent actually |22 M5. COM G  Unani nousl y conti nued.

Page 68 Page 69
1 MR HOFFMAN  Thank you. 1 necessity? Isit uptothe park board? Is it up
2 M. COMG kay. Thank you. 2 tothecourt? It'snot clear to me. But | don't
3 MR RCREM | have another question, just has 3 think this body has any authority over it.
4 todowth the easement issue in Gobb Park. It's 4 M RFREM No. It's just that we runinto
5 ny understanding fromreading in the newspaper that | 5 easements and issues like this. | was just curious
6 thereis at this point no officially recorded 6 if there was anything that we coul d shed -- |
7 easenent for that gas |ine that goes -- 7 didn't understand it. Ckay.
8 Ms. COM G The existing line. 8 M. COMG | don't know
9 MR RCREM The existing line, right. M 9 MR HCFFMAN | nean, obviously the property
10 questionis, in the absence of an easement for the |10 owner could grant theman easement. But if they
11 existing line, what are the expectations of the 11 don't choose to, can sonebody force themto? |
12 utility interns of disturbing public property, or |12 don't know the answer to that question.
13 private property for that natter? 13 M RCREM  kay.
14 M. COMG |'mnot qualified to answer. 14 M. COM G If there's no further business, |
15 M RCREM |'mnot either. 15 just note that next nonth again we neet on the
16 M. COMG But if they wanted a different 16  second Tuesday rather than the usual third Tuesday
17 route, they would certainly have to get an easenent | 17 of the nonth.
18 for that. 18 MR HIFFMAN  And we will have a meeting. |'ve
19 M RREM Rght. Gorrect. 19 got one application that | talked to that wll be
20 M. COMG But it isn't clear to nme who has 20 conming in for a rezoning.
21 the authority to grant themthat easenent. Womdo | 21 M. COMG So February 12th, President's Day,
22 they have to convince that it is a public 22 requires that adjustnent.
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adj ourn the neeting.
MR RIREM Thank you.

Thank you all.
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If there's no further business, |
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I, Beth M Phelps, being first duly sworn on
oath, says that she is the court reporter who
reported in shorthand the proceedings had at the
hearing of said cause, and that the foregoing is a
true and correct transcript of her shorthand notes

So signed and dated this
23rd day of January 2019.

so taken as af oresai d.
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TO: Kankakee Planning Board
FROM: Mike Hoffman, AICP, PLA, Vice President
Emma Swanson, Associate
DATE: February 6, 2019
RE: Case #PB 2019-1-3 Two Major Variance Requests by River Valley Recycling for Property

Located at 288 W South Tech Drive

SUMMARY

Type:
Major Variance

Applicant:
River Valley
Recycling, LLC

Property Owner:
Triangle Holdings,
LLC

288 W South Tech
Drive, Kankakee,
IL 60901

Property ID #:
16-17-18-400-038
16-17-18-400-039

Current Zone:
-2

Variance Requested:

The variance request under PB2019-1-3 is a request to deviate from Section 10.03;
M., (2); to allow relief from the parking requirements.

The second variance requested under PB2019-1-3 is a request to deviate from
Section 10.02; B., (2); to allow relief from Driveways and Aisles construction
material restrictions. The property is zoned Heavy Industrial (I-2) and is located at
288 W South Tech Drive.

Property Address:

Variance From:

Section 10.03; M., (2): “Subject to the other provisions of this Ordinance, off-street
parking space shall be provided for principal industrial and manufacturing uses,
primarily intended for the fabricating, assembling or processing of products or
materials, to the extent specified as follows: ...(2) Uses conducted within or outside
fully enclosed building and/or structure ...per 200 sq./ft. of GFA ...One (1)”
Section 10.02; B., (2): “(2) Driveways and Aisles. ... Driveways and/or aisles that are
designated thruways shall be constructed to the minimum standards specified in
Table 10-1(B) (Driveways and Aisles), of this Section ...” (See Table 10-1(B) Page 2).

Reason for Requested Variance:

The applicant has expressed that the additional parking spaces required by Section
10.03; M., (2) are unnecessary given that the proposed building addition will not
create new employment which would require more spaces. Additionally, the
parking that is currently on-site is more than enough for the number of employees.
The applicant has stated that the current driveway is made of an aggregate surface
of blast furnace slag, which can endure the operation of heavy equipment on-site.

Staff Recommendation: Approve River Valley Recycling’s request for a Major Variance
that would allow deviation from parking requirements and driveway construction
material requirements for the subject property located at 288 W South Tec Drive.

teska associatesinc
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Table 10-1(B) (Driveways and Aisles) from the City of Kankakee 1995 Zoning Ordinance:

Table 10-1{B)
Driveways and Aisles

Surface Minimum Depth

Class 1 Bituminous Concrete One (1") Inch

One and One-Half (1 2" Inch

Binder
- |

Base Course Minimum Depth

Crushed Stone Ten (10") Inches

Grade 9 Gravel Ten (10" Inches

BAM

{ minimum marchall stability of 1,900 inches) Five (5") Inches

Pozzolanmc Six (6") Inches

Subject to Approval of the City Engineer

Equivalents to the Above

MNote:  The binder and surface shall be laid in two (2) hifts. Five (5") inches of non-reinforced
concrete E‘ucmcm 15 an accugtablc altermative in hew of the &Eha]t and base combinations.

~ City Zoning:

County Zoning:

e e

/ S 161715200 5,

/(15_17,13.700 -003
/
/8
P

16-17!18'100% 023

16:17:18:300°002.

82300001
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Teska has reviewed the application for a Major Variance against the requirements set forth in the City of
Kankakee Zoning Ordinance, Section 12.03 Variances. The submitted application is complete, and we offer the
following comments and recommendations:

STANDARDS USED TO EVALUATE VARIANCES

The following standards for evaluating a Variance are provided in Section 12.03.C of the code. Variances shall
be granted based upon the judgment of the Planning Board and/or Director of the Planning Department that
evidence submitted in support of said variance sustains each of the following standards used to evaluate

variances:

(1) The variance relates to a specific parcel of land;

The variance relates to the subject property located at 288 W South Tech Drive (refer to the map
above). However, the variance request is based more on the use of the property than the actual
configuration of the lot.

(2) The variance advances the purposes of the state enabling legislation;

The Statutory Authority for Variation, in consideration of the standards of practical difficulties or
particular hardship, shall require the following evidence be provided:

(a)

(b)

(c)

The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only
under the conditions allowed by the regulations in that zone; and

This criteria is not particularly relevant, as the property has been in use for many years
without a variance.

The plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances; and

The proposed building addition will not add any additional employment at the facility, and
it will not draw any visitors to the facility, as it is a secure, industrial site. Therefore, the
additional parking that would be required for the addition, per the zoning ordinance, is not
needed.

Additionally, the business that operates on the subject property frequently uses heavy
machinery. The type of driveway construction materials, as required per the zoning
ordinance, would be hard to maintain given the daily wear and tear of the heavy machinery
on site. The existing aggregate surface of blast furnace slag has proven to work well with
the type of machinery used on site. The installment of another type of aggregate surface
for the driveway would be a financial hardship for the owner, due to the amount of
maintenance it would require.

The variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.

If granted, this variation will not alter the essential character of the locality due to the
industrial nature of the subject property and the adjacent and surrounding properties in the
area.

(3) The variance can be granted without substantial detriment to the public good;

Given the location of the subject property and the industrial use of the property, this variance would
not be detrimental to the public good.

teska associatesinc
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(4) The benefits of the variance would substantially outweigh any detriment;

These variance requests would help maintain permeable surfaces on the subject property, as they
would allow relief from restrictive parking requirements that are unnecessary for the use and would
allow the applicant to maintain the aggregate surface of blast surface slag, which is more permeable
by a “C” factor of 0.25 (slag aggregate is 0.70 and hard surface concrete/asphalt is 0.95) causing
more surface infiltration of rainwater to recharge the groundwater system with less Detention
Volume required. Also, it is easily reshaped with the heavy equipment being utilized on-site as
needed and it does not require the addition of water to keep down any dust that is associated with
other aggregate surface materials.

(5) The variance would not substantially impair the intent and purposes of the zoning ordinance
and/or comprehensive plan, as adopted by the corporate authorities.

The City’s current Comprehensive Plan, adopted in 1997, outlines several economic development
goals such as to “attract business and industry to locate within the City” and to “ensure that the City
has the resources available to support the location of business and industry within the City.” Based
on these goals, it is our opinion that this variance would not impair the purpose of the City’s
Comprehensive Plan.

RECOMMENDATION

Subject to any testimony provided at the Public Hearing, the proposed Variances appear appropriate and meet
the standards for a Variance as outlined in Section 12.03.C of the Zoning Ordinance. We recommend approval
of both proposed Variances.
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™
— Cornerstone Engineering, Inc.

; 931 West Broadway Street
Bradley, Illinois 60915
815.939.1001 Fax 815.933.9076

Exhibit “B”

Variances Requested

Variance 1 — The Owners are seeking a variance to the number of parking stalls requested to
serve a Building Addition to an Existing Plant, Zoning Ordinance Sec 10.03; M., (2), to zero
additional parking stalls. The proposed improvements will not create any new employment
positions and are designed to improve the efficiency of their operations, so no additional parking
spaces would be needed. The existing site has 97+/- existing parking stalls and has 130
employees spread over 3 shifts and currently is experiencing no shortage of parking. As an
example, the existing facility has 170,280 SF, which the existing Ordinance would require one
parking stall for every 200 SF, giving a required 852 parking stalls to be provided, along the
amount required of a Walmart, where the 97 existing are serving well. The proposed addition is
11,200 SF, which would require 56 additional parking stalls, and the Owner will need zero in
this case.

Variance 2 — The Owners are seeking a variance to the Construction Materials Required in the
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 10.02, B. (2); and the Subdivision Regulations 2002, revised Feb. 2003;
Sec 8.49, D., 5; whichever supersedes. The back yard area of the plant where these
improvements would occur, is a secure area from the public and is only accessible by the current
employees to help reduce the incidence of theft. Because of the heavy equipment operating in
this outside production area with no weight limit restrictions, an aggregate surface of blast
furnace slag is currently being utilized and is working quite well. A hard surface pavement
requirement in this area in accordance with the Ordinance and Subdivision Regulations would be
a hardship to the owner as the Ordinance minimum cross-section is not sufficient for the loads
and turning movements in this area and a heavier pavement would be costly to install and even
more costly to maintain due to the operations taking place. Other benefits of continued use of the
Aggregate Surface Slag Course is that it is more permeable by a “C” factor of 0.25 (slag
aggregate is 0.70 and hard surface concrete/asphalt is 0.95) causing more surface infiltration of
rainwater to recharge the ground water system with less Detention VVolume required. Also, it is
easily reshaped with the heavy equipment being utilized on-site as needed and it does not require
the addition of water to keep down any dust that is associated with other aggregate surface
materials.

Civil Engineering Site Design and Construction Services for Residential, Commercial, Industrial & Municipal Developments
Integrity in Engineering Since 1994
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TESKA

Community Planning + Site Design + Development Economics + Landscape Architecture
TO: Kankakee Planning Board

FROM: Mike Hoffman, AICP, PLA, Vice President
Carol Brobeck, Associate

DATE: February 6, 2019
RE: Case # 2019-1-2 - Request for Rezoning for 355 South Wall Street from C1 to R1

The petitioner, Robert de Oliveira has requested to rezone of the property located at 355 South Wall
Street, from C1 Neighborhood Commercial to R1 Single-Family Residential. The property is located on PIN
16-17-06-200-004, between West Station Street and West Hickory Street. The property has a residential
structure which faces Wall Street, as do neighboring properties.

Originally constructed as a single-family home, the structure has had a small real estate office located on
the ground floor and a dwelling unit on top for many years. The owner now wishes to convert it back
entirely to a residential use. The property is surrounded primarily by residential uses, and the area does
not show signs of pressure or desire to expand commercial uses in this area. The rezoning of the property
to R1is consistent with the predominant use and character of the area. Adjacent properties are zoned
either C1, R1 or R2, all compatible uses.

Show search results for 355 S Wall St...
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355 S Wall St, Kankakee, lllinois, 60901
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Teska has reviewed the application for Rezoning from C1 Neighborhood Commercial to R1 Single-Family
Residential against the requirements set in the City of Kankakee Zoning Ordinance. The submitted
application is complete, and we offer the following comments and recommendations:

Map Amendments

Applications to rezone property are evaluated as Map Amendments. The factors for reviewing a Map
Amendment are established to ensure that proposed Amendments are consistent with the Goals and
Objectives of both the Comprehensive Plan and the Zoning Ordinance. The following factors for evaluating
a Map Amendment are provided in Section 12.05.B.6.b of the code. These factors should be considered
when reviewing the proposed Map Amendment, along with any other evidence the Planning Board
considers relevant.

(a) The proposed map amendment is consistent with the spirit, purpose and intent of the Ordinance.

(b) The proposed map amendment is consistent with the goals, objectives and policies of the City’s Official
Comprehensive plan, and in full conformity with the land use recommendations specified by the Plan,
as delineated on the Official Land Use Plan Map.

(c) All required utilities, community facilities and governmental services have been or will be provided and
possess or will possess adequate capacity and/or manpower to accommodate any permitted use
allowed within the zoning classification being request, or any condition use therein, which might
subsequently be authorized. (e.g. water and sewer lines, storm drainage facilities, access to public
rights-of-way, public transportation, parks and recreational facilities, educational facilities, public
safety facilities).

(d) Compatibility with existing uses and the zoning classification of property within the general area of the
subject property.

(e) The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification,
addressing the need for said map amendment.

(f) The trend of development, if any, in the general area of the subject property, including changes, if any,
which have taken place since the day the property in question was placed in its present zoning
classification, and the effect said map amendment would have on said trend.

Consistency with Purpose and Intent

The intended use of the property upon rezoning is
single-family residential, consistent with the permitted
uses of the R1 Single-Family Residential zoning district,
as outlined in Section 7.02 of the Zoning Ordinance.

Comprehensive Plan

The City’s current 1997 Comprehensive Plan, illustrated
to the right, indicates the subject site (green rectangle)
and surrounding properties on all sides as residential.
The rezoning of this property is consistent with the land
use intentions of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.

Teska Associates, Inc.
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Provision of Utilities

Utility needs, such as water and sewer, public transportation etc., have been adequately provided for. In
addition, the primarily residential nature of the area would support the adequate provision of utilities
generally. The rezoning of the property to R1 will only act to strengthen the need for such provisions.

Compatibility with Existing Land Use/Zoning

The land use of the properties surrounding the subject property are primarily single-family residential.
However, while there are commercial uses in the vicinity, there are none directly adjacent to the subject
property. Adjacent properties to the north and south of the subject property along Wall Street are zoned
C1 Neighborhood Commercial but include a number of single-family homes that do not appear to be used
for commercial uses. Properties abutting the west of the subject property are zoned R1 Single-Family
Residential. Properties directly east, across Wall Street, are zoned either Ci, R1 or R2 Two-Family
Residential, all of which are considered compatible zoning districts with mutually beneficial uses.

See Appendix A for a map of the current zoning for the subject property and the surrounding area.

Suitability of Property for Current Zoning

The subject property currently includes a single-family home and is presently used as a residence and
office. Previously, the property was used exclusively as a residence. Should the property not continued to
be used for both office and residential uses, the property effectively complies with the R1 zoning
classification. Rezoning of the property to R1is a return to the original and traditional use of the subject
property. While adjacent properties remain zoned C1, the structures on those properties are single-family
homes and remain used as such. Rezoning of this property to R1 will enhance and reinforce the residential
character of this area. See Appendix A for a map of the current zoning for the subject property and the
surrounding area.

Development Trends

Properties in the area, while zoned C1, are primarily single-family homes. There are no signs of a trend to
further convert residential properties to commercial/office uses in the area. Also, there is no evidence of a
desire or need to convert residential properties to include or allow for commercial/office uses. There are
commercial uses to the north and south of the subject property along Wall Street, but neither
encroachment of commercial/office uses, nor the redevelopment of single-family homes zoned C1 adjacent
to the subject property into commercial buildings have occurred and are not expected to occur. Thus,
development trends in this area do not indicate that rezoning of the subject property from C1 to R1 will be
consistent with current or expected future uses and is therefore compatible with the land use plan and
vision for this area.

Recommendation

Subject to any testimony provided at the Public Hearing, the rezoning of the subject property appears
appropriate and meets the standards for a Map Amendment as outlined in Section 12.05.B.6.b of the
Zoning Ordinance. Subject to any testimony at the public hearing, we recommend approval of the
proposed Rezoning from C1 to R1. If the Planning Board agrees with this report, we recommend that it be
adopted as preliminary findings of fact.

Teska Associates, Inc.
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Appendix A: Zoning of the Subject Property and Surrounding Properties
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MEMORANDUM
TO: City of Kankakee Planning Board
FROM: Mike Hoffman, AICP, PLA, Vice President
Emma Swanson, Associate
DATE: January 24™, 2019
RE: Amendments to Chapter 12 of the City of Kankakee Zoning Ordinance

The sections within the Zoning Ordinance proposed for amendment are cited in the attached document
with the text in RED showing the text that has been added and the black text with STRIKEGUT being the
text that has been removed.

These amendments have been summarized below:

> The proposed text amendment would ultimately reduce the number of voting members
required for the City of Kankakee Planning Board from thirteen (13) to nine (9). This amendment
would also change the arrangement of initial term limits, and the number of voting members
who must be present to reach a quorum at public meetings.

> The proposed text amendment would require the applicant to provide the public notice sign as
part of the Major Variance and Conditional Uses application procedures. Additionally, the
amendment would create regulations for the type of sign and the size of the sign. These new
regulations are illustrated via graphics within the Major Variance and Conditional Uses
application procedures sections of this chapter.

> The proposed text amendment would introduce easy-to-read diagrams detailing the review
processes for Major Variances, Conditional Uses, and Amendments, and will be placed at the
end of the respective sections of the ordinance.

> The proposed text amendment would also reference the new separate Fee Ordinance, which
would introduce an updated fee structure.

teska associatesinc
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CHAPTER 12 ADMINISTRATION

JURISDICTION

To-accomplish-the purpose-and-intentof this- Ordinance,-The administration of this ordinance the-provisions
established-herein is hereby vested in the corporate authorities; the Planning Board; and/or specified City

Departments, including, but not limited to the Planning Department and the Kankakee Fire Department -
Code Enforcement Division.

A.

Corporate Authorities.

applmable—eeneemmg—the—ppmasms—ef—ums—g;dmanee In those cases where a deC|S|on is

rendered by the corporate authorities, regarding the implementation of the provisions of this
Ordinance, said decision shall be final, subject appeal as prescribed by the Administrative Review
Act, of the lllinois Revised Statutes, as amended.

Planning Board.

Subject to, and in accordance with the laws of the State of lllinois, the Planning Board of the City
of Kankakee is hereby established to serve as an advisory and review authority for all planning,
zoning, and/or classification changes, conditional use permits and/or variances pertaining to lots of
record within the corporate limits and/or extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Kankakee.

(1) Powers and Responsibilities.

The members of the Planning Board shall possess the following powers and/or duties:

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

To hear and decide all matters referred to it or upon which it is required to pass
under this Ordinance.

To hear and decide on all substantive text amendments to the text of this
Ordinance, and on all amendments to the Official Zoning Map.

To hear and decide on all applications for conditional use permits.

To hear and decide appeals from a final administrative decision made by the

Director-of- the-Planning-Department Planning Director, concerning the provisions

of this Ordinance.

In accordance with the lllinois Revised Statutes, Chapter 24, 11-13-3 (E), stating,
"...In all municipalities it shall also hear and decide all matters referred to it or upon
which it is required to pass under such an ordinance...," the Planning Board shall
also possess the following powers and/or duties: To prepare and recommend to
the Mayor and City Council:

(1) An Official Comprehensive Plan, covering past, present and future
development, including the preparation of amendments and/or revisions
thereto;

(2) Assist municipal staff charged with the direction of policy, programs,
projects and/or improvements embraced within the Official
Comprehensive Plan, to further their implementation, and, generally, to
promote the realization of the City's Official Comprehensive Plan;
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(4) Subdivision Regulations with reference to streets, alleys and public

grounds in un-subdivided land, within the City's corporate and
extraterritorial planning jurisdiction;

(5) Zoning Regulations, including Performance Standards, Vacation of Public
Rights-of-Way, Bulk Regulations, Density and Open Space Controls,
Separation of Land Uses, Establish District Classifications, Construction
Standards and Codes, and Incompatible Uses; and,

(6) Dedication/Vacation of Public Right-of-Ways.
(2) Qualifications.

The Planning Board shall consist of thirteen<{43} nine (9) voting members, appointed by
the Mayor, with the advice and consent of the City Council. The following elected and/or
appointed officials shall serve as ex officio non-voting members of the Board: the Mayor,

j j Planning Director, Director of the Kankakee Fire
Department - Code Enforcement Division, City Attorney, City Engineer, and/or
Departmental staff, as required. All voting members of the Planning Board shall be
residents of the City of Kankakee; and shall be appointed en-the-basis—of based on
professional expertise or demonstrated experience and/or interest in related fields. Said
fields shall include, but not be limited to architecture, building construction, conservation,
education, engineering, historic preservation, landscape architecture, finance, law, urban
planning, real estate and/or neighborhood organizations. Any member having a pecuniary
or personal interest in any application and/or appeal scheduled to be heard by the Planning
Board shall disclose such interest, with said disclosure being made a matter of public
record. Without exception, any member having said interest shall not be a party to any of
the following actions or activities regarding said application and/or appeal:

(a) Present, and/or speak in his/her capacity as a member of the Planning Board;

(b) Exert personal influence on fellow members or elected and/or appointed officials;
or,

(c) Vote on the Board's final decision relating to said application or appeal. Subject to
confirmation by the City Council, the Mayor may, at his discretion, remove any
member for incompetence, neglect of duty, or malfeasance in office, or upon failing
to attend at least two-thirds (b) of all regularly scheduled meetings held in a single
calendar year. The Mayor shall, within ten (10) days of said removal, report the
cause of said removal, in writing, to the City Council.

(3) Term of Office.

The initial members of the Planning Board shall serve staggered terms, as determined by
lot, at the first regular meeting of the Planning Board, in accordance with the following

schedule:
(a) FeurTwo (4-2)Members .. ......... . ... .. ... . .... One (1) Year Terms.
(b) Fewr-Three(4-3)Members . ........................ Two (2) Year Terms.
(c) Five-Four(84)Members .. ..... ... .. ... .. ... . .... Three (3) Year Terms.

(d) As each initial term expires, appointments to the Planning Board shall be made for
terms of three (3) years. Members shall serve until a successor is appointed for

2
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, and shall serve without compensation,
unless otherwise authorized by the Mayor and City Council.

(4) Organization.

The Mayor shall appoint a Chairman and Vice-Chairman from among the members of the
Planning Board for terms of one (1) year. The Secretary of the Planning Board shall be the
Director-of the-Planning-Department- Planning Director. Said Department shall serve as
the repository for all documents and records related to the activities of the Planning Board.
The Secretary shall have no vote on any matter under consideration by the Planning Board;
and shall not count towards an eligible quorum. The Secretary shall be responsible for:

(a) Meeting minutes, including the notation and/or preparation of the permanent
written record of Board activities, including the vote of each member, upon each
question, or, if failing to vote, or absent, indicating such fact;

(b) Technical assistance to residents and members of the Board;
(c) Public notification, as specified by the provisions of this Chapter;
(d) Advising the corporate authorities regarding vacancies and expiring terms;

(e) Report preparation, including findings and recommendations, ordinances and/or
resolutions; and,

(f) Administrative duties including the maintenance of a permanent, written, public
inventory of all Board actions, decisions, documents and/or records, available for
public inspection during regular office hours.

(5) Meetings and Hearings.

Meetings of the Planning Board shall be scheduled on a monthly basis, shall be open to
the public, and shall be held in accordance with the provisions of the State of lllinois' Open
Meetings Act. The Planning Board shall hold a minimum of four (4) public meetings per
calendar year. To convene a legal meeting, a quorum, consisting of a majority of its duly
appointed and serving members, must be present. All decisions and/or recommendations
made by the Planning Board shall require a majority vote of those members present and
eligible to vote on any such issue—with—a—minimum—of-five {(5)}-members—voting. The
Chairman, the Vice-Chairman, and/or the Secretary shall have the power to cancel or
postpone a scheduled meeting, or call additional meetings as necessary, for cause, without
further public notice. The Chairman shall preside over meetings, following commonly
accepted parliamentary procedure, ensuring public discussion of issues before the
Planning Board. In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman shall perform the
duties of the Chairman. In the absence of both the Chairman and Vice-Chairman, the
members shall elect a temporary chairman through a simple majority vote of the quorum
present. The Chairman shall have the power to administer oaths; and shall retain the right
to call for a vote on all matters where a vote is taken. The Chairman and/or members of
the Board by majonty vote of those members present and eI|g|bIe to vote shall have the

W Y to require
the submlttal of any and aII documents deemed necessary and approprlate to the rendering
of an informed decision on matters pending before them.’

C. City Departments and Officials.

To the extent specified by the provisions of this Ordinance, other applicable laws, codes and/or
regulations, and within any and all additional limitations established by the duly elected and
authorized corporate authorities, the following elected and/or appointed officials, departments,
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and/or their designated representative, shall act on behalf of the corporate authorities to implement
the appropriate provisions of this Ordinance.

(1) Planning Department Director.
The Director-of-thePlanning-Department-Planning Director, also referred to as the City

Planner, or a designated representative thereof, shall:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Assume the responsibility of enforcing the provisions of this Ordinance and shall
serve as the chief enforcement officer of this Ordinance;

Be responsible for all administrative functions relating to the review, certification,
issuance and/or denial of applications, permits and certificates specified by the
provisions of this Ordinance. All administrative records shall be made available for
inspection by the general public, upon written request. Said records shall include,
but not be limited to, text amendments to the Zoning Ordinance, appeals,
applications, the Official Zoning Map, amendments to the Official Zoning Map,
conditional use permits and variances;

Periodically review this Ordinance, evaluating its effectiveness in dealing with
current trends in area development, and advise the Planning Board regarding the
nature and extent of revisions this Ordinance may require, and other related
matters affecting the actions of the Planning Board and/or the corporate authorities
under this Ordinance;

Review all applications seeking to establish, alter, construct, demolish, relocate
and/or remove, any and all uses, buildings, and/or structures, or portions thereof,
for compliance with the provisions of this Ordinance, and all applicable permits,
regulations, and/or other requirements specified by City ordinances or the statutes
of the State of lllinois;

Be responsible for the official receipt of all applications and/or related
documentation, as prescribed by the provisions of this Ordinance;

Document the filing of said applications, and maintain copies of all agreements,
codes, ordinances, and/or resolutions which are specified herein, or which may
become a part of and/or adjunct to any proceeding conducted under the provisions
of this Chapter;

Forward all applications and/or related documentation to the Planning Board, as
specified herein, not less than seven (7) days prior to the scheduled hearing date;
and,

Subject to the other provisions of this Ordinance, shall review the applicability of
the provisions of this Ordinance, and shall render a final administrative decision,
interpreting and/or enforcing said provisions, in @ manner consistent with the
purpose and intent specified herein.

(2) City Attorney.

The City Attorney shall provide legal opinions and expertise to the Planning Department,
on those aspects of planning and zoning issues, as they relate to the interpretation and
enforcement of the provisions of this Ordinance, the Kankakee Municipal Code, the
Municipal Code of the State of lllinois, and/or all other applicable laws, codes, and/or
regulations, as amended.
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(3) City Engineer.

The City Engineer shall perform technical analysis and review of all plans and/or
development proposals submitted for consideration under the provisions of this Ordinance,
the Kankakee Municipal Code, the Municipal Code of the State of lllinois, and/or all other
applicable laws, codes, and/or regulations, as amended.

(4) City Fire Chief.

The City Fire Chief, also referred to as the Chief Code Official, shall review all plans and/or
development proposals submitted for consideration under the provisions of this Ordinance,
the Kankakee Building Code, the Kankakee Municipal Code, the Municipal Code of the
State of lllinois, and/or all other applicable laws, codes, and/or regulations, as amended;
and, issue building, demolition and/or occupancy permits; and, conduct inspections of
buildings and structures to determine compliance with the aforesaid laws, codes and
regulations; and, to make and maintain records thereof.

RESERVED
VARIANCES
General Provisions.

Utilizing the procedures established by this Section, the owners of record of a zoning lot may file
an application for a variance, as defined in Chapter 2 (Definitions) of this Ordinance, seeking relief
from specific provisions herein, which may be perceived as a source of undue physical and/or
financial hardship to said owners.

Classification.

To assure prompt, orderly and efficient consideration of all applications for variances under the
provisions of this Ordinance, said applications shall be separated and classified as either a Minor
or a Major Variance, as defined in Chapter 2 (Definitions) of this Ordinance, and/or based upon the
degree of non-compliance said variance will produce in relation to the amount required for full
compliance with the applicable provisions of this Ordinance.

Standards used to evaluate variances.

Variances shall be granted based upon the judgement of the Planning Board and/or Director-ofthe
Planning—Department-Planning Director that evidence submitted in support of said variance
sustains each of the following standards used to evaluate variances:

(1) The variance relates to a specific parcel of land and is due to some unique circumstance;
ion The property in

questron cannot yreId areasonable return if permrtted to be used only under the conditions
allowed by the regulations in that zone;

(3) The variance can be granted without substantial detriment to the public good, and will not
alter the essential character of the area;

(4) The benefits of the variance would substantially outweigh any detriment; and,

(5) The variance would not substantially impair the intent and purposes of the zoning
ordinance and/or comprehensive plan, as adopted by the corporate authorities.
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D. Minor Variance.

Applications seeking relief from specific provisions of this Ordinance, which will produce an
increase or decrease in the degree of compliance of existing buildings and/or structures, by not
more than ten percent (10%) of the amount required for full compliance, shall be classified as a
Minor Variance, as defined in Chapter 2 (Definitions) of this Ordinance.

(1)

(2)

3

Procedure.

Subject to the provisions of this Chapter, the Birectorofthe-Planning-DepartmentPlanning

Director shall review all applications seeking a minor variance, and shall conduct said
review in accordance with the following: review all information and evidence; conduct an
administrative review; prepare findings; and, render a final administrative decision. Should
the Director—of -thePlanning—Department—Planning Director deem it necessary and
appropriate to deny said application, the applicant shall have the right to appeal said
decision to the Planning Board, utilizing the provisions specified by this Chapter.

Forms and Assistance.

The applicant shall obtain the appropriate forms from the Planning Department, which shall
provide the applicant with all possible assistance and information, necessary to assure a
thorough and impartial review. The applicant shall be responsible for providing all
information specified on the application forms. Said information shall include, but not be
limited to, the following:

(a) Ownership and/or Operating Interest. Said application shall provide the name,
address and telephone number of the applicant, owners of record, and/or
developer.

(b) Identification of the Subject Property. Said application shall provide the
following means of accurately identifying the subject property: a common street
address; tax parcel identification number; and a base map showing the location of
the subject property, with reference to abutting zoning lots, public rights-of-way,
designated historic landmarks and/or districts, and the corporate limits of
applicable jurisdictions.

(c) List of Existing Uses and Improvements. Said application shall provide a list of
all principal and/or accessory uses, currently existing on the subject property.

(d) Descriptive Narrative. Said application shall provide a brief narrative describing
the changes in the operation of existing uses and/or the nature of improvements
proposed for said zoning lot. A fully completed application with required
documentation and/or attachments and the required fee, shall be filed with the
Planning Department in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter. Said
application and materials shall be a matter of public record; and be made available
for public inspection upon written request. Upon receipt of a completed application,

the Director—of-thePlanning—Department-Planning Director shall review said
application within ten (10) days of the filing date.

Decisions.

The Director—of thePlanning—Department—Planning Director shall render a final

administrative decision within ten (10) days of the conclusion of said administrative review;
and shall notify the Planning Board of all minor variances on file, including the status
thereof. Subject to appeal, the Director-of-the-PlanningDepartment-Planning Director shall
forward a written report to the applicant summarizing the final administrative decision. A
final administrative decision granting a minor variance, shall be valid for one (1) year from
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the effective date of said decision, until and unless, a building permit, or any other permit
required for the action or use for which said minor variance was requested, has been
obtained and the actual construction, or alteration of a building and/or structure, or the land
improvement, contemplated in connection with said application, has been actively
commenced within said time. The Director of the Kankakee Fire Department - Code
Enforcement Division shall not issue any permits in conjunction with said decision, for a
period of seven (7) days following the effective date of said decision, in order to provide an
adequate amount of time for a notice of appeal to be filed by a party aggrieved by said
decision. No application for a minor variance which has been denied by the Directorof-the
Planning-Department-Planning Director, shall be reconsidered within a period of one (1)
year from the effective date of said decision.

E. Major Variance.

All applications seeking relief from specific provisions of this Ordinance, which are not classified as
a Minor Variance, shall be classified as a Major Variance, as defined in Chapter 2 (Definitions) of
this Ordinance.

(1)

(2)

Procedure.

Subject to the provisions of this Chapter, the Planning Board shall review all applications
seeking a major variance. The Planning Board shall review said applications in accordance
with the following: review all information and evidence; verify public notification; conduct
public hearings; prepare findings and recommendations; and, render a final administrative
decision. Should the Planning Board deem it necessary and appropriate to deny said
application, the applicant shall have the right to appeal said decision to the Corporate
Authorities, utilizing the provisions specified by this Chapter.

Forms and Assistance.

The applicant shall obtain the appropriate forms from the Planning Department, which shall
provide the applicant with all possible assistance and information, necessary to assure a
thorough and impartial review. The applicant shall be responsible for providing all
information specified on the application forms. Said information shall include, but not be
limited to, the following:

(a) Ownership and/or Operating Interest. Said application shall provide the name,
address and telephone number of the applicant, owners of record, and/or
developer.

(b) Affected Parties. Said application shall provide the parcel identification (PIN)
number, for all abutting zoning lots, along with the names and addresses of the
owners of record for said abutting zoning lots.

(c) ldentification of the Subject Property. Said application shall provide the
following means of accurately identifying the subject property: a common street
address; tax parcel identification number; and a base map showing the location of
the subject property, with reference to abutting zoning lots, public rights-of-way,
designated historic landmarks and/or districts, and the corporate limits of
applicable jurisdictions.

(d) List of Existing Uses and Improvements. Said application shall provide a list of
all principal and/or accessory uses, currently existing on the subject property.

(e) Descriptive Narrative. Said application shall provide a brief narrative describing
the changes in the operation of existing uses and/or the nature of improvements
proposed for said zoning lot. A fully completed application with required
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documentation and/or attachments and the required fee, shall be filed with the
Planning Department in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter. Said
application and materials shall be a matter of public record, and be made available
for public inspection upon written request. Upon receipt of a completed application,
the Directorof-thePlanning-Department-Planning Director shall assign a case
number and forward copies of the application and all related materials to the
Planning Board not less than seven (7) days prior to the scheduled hearing date.
Applications shall be assigned for a public hearing in the order in which they are
received.

Public Hearings.

Subject to the provisions of this Ordinance, the Planning Board shall convene a public
hearing on applications for a major variance at the next regularly scheduled hearing date.
All public hearings convened under the provisions of this Ordinance shall be open to the
public, and conducted in an impartial and orderly manner, consistent with the applicable
provisions of the State of lllinois' Open Meetings Act, as amended. The Planning Board
shall regulate the conduct of said hearings, ruling on the validity and accuracy of
applications, procedural matters, modifications, and/or objections presented during said
hearings. Persons wishing to testify during a public hearing, shall do so as witnesses, under
oath, with said oath being administered by the Chairman of the Planning Board. The
Planning Board may continue a public hearing, without the additional placement of
published and/or posted public notice, should said continuance be deemed necessary and
appropriate. The time and place of said continuance shall be determined by the Planing
Board, after consultation with the petitioner and all affected parties, and shall be announced
for the public record, prior to the adjournment of said public hearing.

Public Notification.

The purpose of public notification is to assure the owners of record of affected properties,
and/or affected citizens, of having an opportunity to present their perspectives on specific
land use issues relating to the granting of a major variance, before a final administrative
decision is reached by the Planning Board. The provisions for public notification specified
in this Section shall be fully completed not less than ten (10) days, and not more than
twenty (20) days prior to the scheduled public hearing. Said provisions shall apply for all
applications for a major variance under the provisions of this Chapter.

(a) Published Legal Notice. The applicant shall furnish and publish a legal notice in
a newspaper of general circulation within the City. Said legal notice shall adhere
to a format specified by the Director-of-the-Planning-DepartmentPlanning Director,
and shall include, but not be limited to the date, time & place of the public hearing;
the purpose of the public hearing; and, a legal description & common street
address of the subject zoning lot.

(b) Posted Public Notice. Upon schedulmg a pubI|c hearmg—the—D#eeter—ef—the

a#eys—the appllcant shall post and/or promlnently dlsplay a publlc notlce (sign) on
the subject zoning lot, and/or on public rights-of-way abutting said lot, excluding
alleys. Said public notice shall provide the following: the date, time & place of the
public hearing; the purpose of the public hearing; and, the common street address
of the subject zoning lot. Said public notice should be a readable sign, with either
a red background and white lettering or a yellow background and black lettering.
The sign should be constructed of weatherproof material, and shall be no smaller
than two (2) feet by three (3) feet in size for subject zoning lots greater than 12,000
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square feet in size, and no smaller than eleven (11) inches by seven (7) inches in
size for subject zoning lots less than 12,000 square feet.”

2" x 3 11" x 17"

NOTICE OF NOTICE OF
Conditional Use Permit / Major Variance
and/or Rezoning
Conditional Use Permit / Major Variance and/or Rezoning Street Number & Street Name, Kankakee, IL
for property commonly known as:

PUBLIC HEARING
PUBLIC HEARING
for property commonly known as:
Public Hearing Information
Street Number & Street Name, Kankakee, IL

CASE #
DATE
TIME

Public Hearing Information P

PURPOSE
CASE # For More Information, Call:
DATE (00x) 0030000
TIME
LOCATION
PURPOSE

For More Information, Call: (XXX) XXX-XXXX

(c) Written Notification of Property Owners. For each zoning lot abutting the
subject zoning lot, including public rights-of-way, the applicant shall notify the
owners of record, in writing, regarding the date, time, place and purpose of the
public hearing. Written notice shall be effected by certified mail,—+eturn-receipt
requested and shall include the complete text of the published legal notice. Failure
to send a written notice where no address appears on the tax assessor's rolls, shall
not invalidate subsequent proceedings relevant to said application. For the
purposes of this Ordinance, should it be deemed necessary and appropriate by
the Planning Board, the applicant shall notify additional owners of record of
properties which are likely to be affected by the changes and/or improvements
proposed for the subject zoning lot.

(d) Proof of Compliance. The applicant shall submit evidence documenting full
compliance with all public notification requirements specified by this Chapter, to

the Director-ofthe-Planning-Department-Planning Director, not less than twenty-

four (24) hours prior to the scheduled public hearing. Said evidence shall include,
but not be limited to, an—affidavit-of-service a site photo of the posted sign,
newspaper publisher's certificate and certified mail return receipts.

(5) Rules of Evidence and Testimony.

The public hearing shall be open to the public and shall be convened in the Council
Chambers at City Hall or at any other such location so specified by the Planning Board.
The Planning Board shall conduct the public hearing, and shall require that evidence be
presented, in the following order:

(a) Restatement of Case by the Chairman; only if initial presentation needs
clarification, or if certain elements of the case, and/or applicable regulations require
explanation;

(b) Presentation of Supporting Testimony and/or Evidence;

(c) Cross-Examination - Supporting Witnesses;

(d) Presentation of Objecting Testimony and/or Evidence;
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(e) Cross-Examination - Objecting Witnesses;

(f) Applicant's Rebulttal;

(g) Objectors' Rebuttal; and,

(h) Determination of Findings and Recommendations.

In carrying out its duties, as prescribed herein, the Planning Board shall not be bound by
the strict rules of evidence, and may exclude irrelevant, immaterial, incompetent, and/or
unduly repetitious testimony and/or evidence. The Planning Board shall rule on all
questions relating to the admissibility of evidence. The applicant may represent himself
and/or choose to be represented by counsel and/or a designated agent at the public
hearing. The applicant and/or owners of record shall be entitled to no less than one (1)
opportunity to speak at the time said public hearing is conducted. Reasonable opportunity
shall also be provided for all interested parties to present their views. Should it be deemed
necessary and appropriate during-the-course-of said public hearing, the Planning Board
shall retain the right to request additional information from the applicant, owners of record,
and/or their designated agents, concerning an application for a variance, and to continue
said public hearing until such information is presented for review.

Findings and Recommendations.

At the close of the public hearing, the Planning Board shall determine findings, which detail
the mannerin-which way the decision to be rendered by the Planning Board implements
the goals and objectives of the this Ordinance, or clarifies the administrative interpretation
produced by this review process. Said findings shall be based upon the evidence presented
in each specific case, with respect to the criteria to be used in the evaluation of a variance
application specified in Section 12.03, C. of this Chapter.

Decisions.

Subject to the appeals process specified in Section 12.05 herein, the decision rendered by
the Planning Board shall be the final administrative decision. The Planning Board shall
render a final administrative decision regarding applications for major variances, within
forty-five (45) days of the conclusion of said public hearing. The Planning Board shall
recommend or when herein authorized, require and attach such conditions and/or
restrictions as may be deemed necessary and appropriate to reduce and/or minimize the
negative effects of said variance upon other zoning lots, and to better carry out the purpose
and intent of this Ordinance. Decisions made by the Planning Board, granting a major
variance, shall be valid for a period of one (1) year from the effective date of said decision,
until and unless, a building permit, or any other permit required for the action or use for
which said major variance was requested, has been obtained and the actual construction,
or alteration of a building and/or structure, or the land improvement, contemplated in
connection with said application, has been actively commenced within said time. The
Director of the Kankakee Fire Department - Code Enforcement Division shall not issue any
permits in conjunction with said decision, for a period of seven (7) days following the
effective date of said decision, in order to provide an adequate amount of time for a notice
of appeal to be filed by a party aggrieved by said decision. No application for a major
variance which has been denied by the Planning Board, shall be reconsidered within a
period of one (1) year from the effective date of said decision.

10
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Review Process
Major Variance

Application
Submitted

Application reviewed by staff
Staff conducts site inspection f-------=-=--==ommn-]
Staff recommendation prepared

*Not less than 10days

Public and not more than
* % * 20days prior to the
NOtIﬁcatlon public hearing

Applicant submits evidence
documenting full compliance with all ---=--==--=-=nncuu-- 3
public notification requirements

Planning Board
Public Hearing held —— Hearing and
Finding

12.04 CONDITIONAL USES
A. General Provisions.

The development and implementation of this Ordinance is based upon the division of the City of
Kankakee into zoning districts. Within said districts, the usage, bulk and location of land and/or
buildings are substantially uniform. However, certain uses possess unique characteristics, which
prevents their being properly classified in any partieular district, without considering the impact of
a particular use upon nearby zoning lots, and the public's need for said use, at said location, on a
case-by-case basis. For the purposes of this Ordinance, specified uses shall be classified as a
conditional use, as defined in Chapter 2 (Definitions) of this Ordinance; and shall be subject to the
provisions of this Section, and all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance.

B. Conditional Use Permit.

Utilizing the provisions established by this Section, an applicant may file an application for a
conditional use permit, allowing for the establishment, operation, and/or maintenance of a particular
use, which traditionally affects the public interest, but whose unusual nature may give rise to unique
problems for neighboring property and/or public facilities. Said conditional use permit shall be
granted to the applicant by the City Council, upon recommendation of the Planning Board, and
upon demonstrating full compliance with the provisions of this Chapter, and any conditions and/or
restrictions imposed on said conditional use, with the approval of the corporate authorities.

C. Application.

Any person may file an application to establish, operate, and/or maintain any of the conditional
uses specified by the provisions of this Ordinance, as being allowed in the zoning district in which
the subject zoning lot is located, provided said person has a documented legal interests in said use
and/or zoning lot. Said legal interests shall include, but not be limited to a freehold interest in said
lot; a possessory interest in said lot, entitled to exclusive possession; a contractual interest in said
lot, which may become a freehold interest; and/or, an exclusive possessory interest in said lot,
which is specifically enforceable.

11
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Procedure.

Subject to the provisions of this Chapter, the Planning Board shall review all applications
seeking a conditional use permit. The Planning Board shall review said applications in
accordance with the following processes: review all information and evidence; verify public
notification; conduct public hearings; prepare findings and recommendations; and, submit
findings and recommendations to the corporate authorities.

Forms and Assistance.

The applicant shall obtain the appropriate forms from the Planning Department, which shall
provide the applicant with all possible assistance and information, necessary to assure a
thorough and impartial review. The applicant shall be responsible for providing all
information specified on the application forms. Said information shall include, but not be
limited to, the following:

(a) Ownership and/or Operating Interest. Said application shall provide the name,
address and telephone number of the applicant; owners of record and/or
developer.

(b) Affected Parties. Said application shall provide the parcel identification (PIN)
number for all zoning lots located within two hundred (200) feet of the subject
zoning lot, along with the names and addresses of the owners of record for said
zoning lots.

(c) ldentification of the Subject Property. Said application shall provide the
following means of accurately identifying the subject property: a common street
address, a tax parcel identification number, and a base map showing the location
of the subject property, with reference to abutting zoning lots, public rights-of-way,
designated historic landmarks and/or districts, and the corporate limits of
applicable jurisdictions.

(d) List of Existing Uses and Improvements. Said application shall provide a list of
all principal and/or accessory uses, currently existing on the subject property.

(e) Descriptive Narrative. Said application shall provide a brief narrative, describing
the changes in the operation of existing uses and/or the nature of improvements
proposed for said zoning lot, which support the applicant's contention that a
hardship would result from the City's enforcement of the provisions of this
Ordinance. A fully completed application with required documentation and/or
attachments and the required fee, shall be filed with the Planning Department in
accordance with the provisions of this Chapter. Said application and materials shall
be a matter of public record; and be made available for public inspection upon
written request. Upon receipt of the application, the Director—of-thePlanning
Department-Planning Director shall assign a case number and forward copies of
the application and all related materials to the Planning Board within seven (7)
days prior to the scheduled hearing date. Applications shall be assigned for a
public hearing in the order in which they are received.

Public Hearing.

Subject to the provisions of this Ordinance, the Planning Board shall convene a public
hearing on applications for a conditional use, at the next regularly scheduled hearing. All
public hearings convened under the provisions of this Ordinance shall be open to the
public, and conducted in an impartial and orderly manner, consistent with the applicable
provisions of the State of lllinois’ Open Meetings Act, as amended. The Planning Board
shall regulate the conduct of said hearings, ruling on the validity and accuracy of

12
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applications, procedural matters, modifications, and/or objections presented during said
hearings. Persons wishing to testify during a public hearing, shall do so as witnesses, under
oath, with said oath being administered by the Chairman of the Planning Board. The
Planning Board may continue a public hearing, without the additional placement of
published and/or posted public notice, should said continuance be deemed necessary and
appropriate. The time and place of said continuance shall be determined by the Planning
Board, after consultation with the applicant and all affected parties, and shall be announced
for the public record, prior to the adjournment of said public hearing.

Public Notification.

The purpose of public notification is to assure the owners of record of affected properties,
and/or affected citizens, of having an opportunity to present their perspectives on specific
land use issues relating to the granting of a conditional use permit, before the Planning
Board determines its findings and recommendations. The provisions for public notification
specified in this Section shall be fully completed not less than ten (10) days, and not more
than twenty (20) days prior to the scheduled public hearing. Said provisions shall apply for
all applications for a conditional use permit under the provisions of this Chapter.

(a) Published Legal Notice. The applicant shall furnish and publish a legal notice in
a newspaper of general circulation within the City. Said legal notice shall adhere
to a format specified by the Director-of-the-Planning-DepartmentPlanning Director,
and shall include, but not be limited to the date, time & place of the public hearing;
the purpose of the public hearing; and, a legal description and common street
address of the subject zoning lot.

(b) Posted Public Notice. Upon schedulmg a publlc hearmg—the—D#eeter—ef—the

a#eys—the appllcant shall post and/or promlnently dlsplay a publlc notlce (sign) on
the subject zoning lot, and/or on public rights-of-way abutting said lot, excluding
alleys. Said public notice shall provide the following: the date, time & place of the
public hearing; the purpose of the public hearing; and, the common street address
of the subject zoning lot. Said public notice should be a readable sign, with either
a red background and white lettering or a yellow background and black lettering.
The sign should be constructed of weatherproof material, and shall be no smaller
than two (2) feet by three (3) feet in size for subject zoning lots greater than 12,000
square feet in size, and no smaller than eleven (11) inches by seven (7) inches in
size for subject zoning lots less than 12,000 square feet.”

13
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TIME
LOCATION
PURPOSE

For More Information, Call: (XXX) XXX-XXXX

(c) Written Notification of Property Owners. For each zoning lot located within two
hundred (200) feet of the subject zoning lot, the applicant shall notify the owners
of record, in writing, regarding the date, time, place and purpose of the public
hearing. Written notice shall be effected by certified mail, return-receiptrequested;
and shall include the complete text of the published legal notice. Failure to send a
written notice where no address appears on the tax assessor's rolls, shall not
invalidate subsequent proceedings relevant to said application. For the purposes
of this Ordinance, should it be deemed necessary and appropriate by the Planning
Board, the applicant shall notify additional owners of record of properties which are
likely to be affected by the changes and/or improvements proposed for the subject
zoning lot.

(d) Proof of Compliance. The applicant shall submit evidence documenting full
compliance with all public notification requirements specified by this Chapter, to

the Director-ofthe-Planning-Department-Planning Director, at least twenty-four (24)

hours prior to the scheduled public hearing. Said evidence shall include, but not
be limited to, an-affidavit-of service a site photo of the posted sign, newspaper
publisher's certificate and certified mail return receipts.

(5) Rules of Evidence and Testimony.
The public hearing shall be open to the public and shall be convened in the Council
Chambers at City Hall, or at any other such location so specified by the Planning Board.
The Chairman of the Planning Board shall conduct the public hearing, and shall require
that evidence be presented, in the following order:

(a) Restatement of case by the Chairman; only if initial presentation needs
clarification, or if certain elements of the case, and/or applicable regulations require
explanation;

(b) Presentation of Supporting Testimony and/or Evidence;

(c) Cross-Examination - Supporting Witnesses;

(d) Presentation of Objecting Testimony and/or Evidence;

(e) Cross-Examination - Objecting Witnesses;
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(f) Applicant's Rebuttal

(g) Objectors' Rebuttal;

(h) Determination of Findings of Fact;

(i) Conclusions; and,

(j) Submit Findings and Recommendations to the Corporate Authorities.

In carrying out its duties, as prescribed herein, the Planning Board shall not be bound by
the strict rules of evidence, and may exclude irrelevant, immaterial, incompetent, and/or
unduly repetitious testimony and/or evidence. The Planning Board shall rule on all
questions relating to the admissibility of evidence. The applicant may represent himself or
choose to be represented by counsel and/or a designated agent at the public hearing. The
applicant and/or owners of record shall be entitled to no less than one (1) opportunity to
speak at the time said public hearing is conducted. Reasonable opportunity shall also be
provided for all interested parties to present their views. Should it be deemed necessary
and appropriate during the-course-of-said public hearing, the Planning Board shall retain
the right to request additional information from the applicant, owners of record, and/or their
designated agents, concerning an application for a conditional use, and to continue said
public hearing until such information is presented for review.

Findings and Recommendations.

At the close of the public hearing, the Planning Board shall determine findings, which detail
the mannerin-which way the proposed conditional use is consistent with the goals and
objectives of the this Ordinance; or clarifies the administrative interpretation and/or
conditions or restrictions recommended as a result of this review process. Said findings
shall be based upon the evidence presented in each specific case, with respect to, but not
limited to, the following factors:

(a) Existing and/or proposed uses and zoning classification relating to the subject
property, abutting zoning lots, the surrounding neighborhood, and the City as a
whole;

(b) Suitability for proposed uses and/or improvements;

(c) Development trends in the general area including changes to land use or prior
amendments to the Zoning Ordinance, thereby altering conditions for use and
development;

(d) Official Comprehensive Plan including compliance with the stated objectives, and
the impact on said objectives, of granting said conditional use;

(e) Maintenance of the public's health, safety and general welfare; and,
(f) Enjoyment of property by neighbors for its intended use.
Decisions.

The Planning Board shall forward their findings and recommendations regarding
applications for conditional use permits, to the City Council within thirty (30) days of the
conclusion of said public hearing. The Planning Board shall recommend, and the corporate
authorities may require and attach, such conditions and/or restrictions to a conditional use
permit, as may be deemed necessary and appropriate to reduce and/or minimize the
negative effects of said conditional use, and to better carry out the purpose and intent of
this Ordinance. The City Council may grant or deny an application for a conditional use
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permit, after reviewing the findings and the recommendations of the Planning Board,
including stipulations of additional conditions and guarantees deemed necessary for the
protection of the public interest as recommended by the Planning Board. Ordinances
and/or resolutions granting a conditional use, shall be valid for one (1) year from the
effective date of said ordinance, until and unless, a building permit, or any other permit
required for the action or use for which said conditional use was requested, has been
obtained and the actual construction, or alteration of a building and/or structure, or the land
improvement, contemplated in connection with said application, has been actively
commenced within said time. The Director of the Kankakee Fire Department - Code
Enforcement Division shall not issue any permits in conjunction with said decision, for a
period of seven (7) days following the effective date of said decision, in order to provide an
adequate amount of time for a notice of appeal to be filed by a party aggrieved by said
decision. No application for a conditional use permit which has been denied by the
corporate authorities, shall be resubmitted for a period of one (1) year from the effective
date of said decision.

Review Process
Conditional Use Permit

Application
Submitted
Application reviewed by staff
Staff conducts site inspection p------------mmnoaun- 3
Staff recommendation prepared - *Not Jess than 10 days
Public and not more than
Notiﬁcation * 20days prior to the
. 3 . blic heari
Applicant submits evidence pubicheaning
documenting full compliance with all f-------------------- 3
public notification requirements

Planning Board

Public Hearing held — .
< Recommendation

r

City Council
Decision

Public Hearing held }——

12.05 AMENDMENTS

In order to assure that the provisions of this Ordinance remain consistent with the promotion and/or
protection of the health, safety and welfare of the general public, the regulations imposed, and the
zoning districts created by the provisions of this Ordinance may be amended from time to time in a
manner specified in this Section.

A. Classification.

For the purposes of this Ordinance, and to assure the prompt, orderly and efficient consideration
of proposed amendments to the provisions specified herein, said amendments shall be separated
and classified as either a substantive text amendment or an amendment to the Official Zoning Map.
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Substantive-Text Amendment.

All proposals for additions, alterations, deletions, and/or other substantive changes to the
specific text, requirements, and/or procedures of this Ordinance, imposed upon the use of
a zoning lot, shall be defined as substantive text amendments.

Map Amendment.
All proposals for additions, alterations, deletions, and/or other substantive changes to the

delineation of zoning districts on the City's Official Zoning Map, shall be defined as map
amendments.

B. Application.

For the purposes of this Ordinance, substantive text amendments to the-text-of this Ordinance
and/or amendments to the City's Official Zoning Map, may be proposed by any individual, agency,
board, bureau, commission, institution, firm and/or corporation, public or private, having a legal
interest in any property located within the corporate limits.

(1)

(2)

Procedure.

Subject to the provisions of this Chapter, the Planning Board shall review all proposed
amendments to the provisions of this Ordinance, and to the boundaries of zoning districts
designated under said provisions; and represented on the City's Official Zoning Map. The
Planning Board shall review said amendments in accordance with the followings
processes: review all information and evidence; verify public notification; conduct public
hearing; prepare findings; and, submit recommendations to the corporate authorities. The
Planning Board shall submit its findings and recommendations to the corporate authorities
for review and approval, in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Kankakee
Municipal Code and the lllinois Municipal Code, as amended.

Forms and Assistance.

All amendments shall be submitted on the appropriate forms which may be obtained from
the Planning Department, which shall provide the applicant all possible assistance and
information necessary to assure a thorough and impartial review. The applicant shall be
responsible for providing all information specified on the application forms. Said information
shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

(a) Filing Information. Said application shall provide the name, address and
telephone number of the applicant.

(b) Descriptive Narrative. Said application shall provide a brief narrative describing
the changes proposed by said amendment; and offering an explanation as to why
said changes should be incorporated into this Ordinance. A fully completed
application with required documentation and/or attachments and the required fee,
shall be filed with the Planning Department in accordance with the provisions of
this Chapter. Upon receipt of the application, the Director—of-thePlanning
Bepartment-Planning Director shall assign a case number and forward copies of
the application and all related materials to the Planning Board within seven (7)
days prior to the scheduled hearing date. Applications shall be assigned for a
public hearing in the order in which they are received. Said application and
materials shall be a matter of public record and be made available for public
inspection upon written request.
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Public Hearing.

Subject to the provisions of this Ordinance, the Planning Board shall convene a public
hearing on all proposed amendments to this Ordinance or the City's Official Zoning Map.
All public hearings convened under the provisions of this Ordinance shall be open to the
public, and conducted in an impartial and orderly manner, consistent with the applicable
provisions of the State of lllinois' Open Meetings Act, as amended. The Planning Board
shall regulate the conduct of said hearings, ruling on the validity and accuracy of
applications, procedural matters, modifications, and/or objections presented during said
hearings. Persons wishing to testify during a public hearing, shall do so as witnesses, under
oath, with said oath being administered by the Chairman of the Planning Board. The
Planning Board may continue a public hearing, without the additional placement of
published and/or posted public notice, should said continuance be deemed necessary and
appropriate. The time and place of said continuance shall be determined by the Planning
Board, after consultation with the applicant and all affected parties, and shall be announced
for the public record, prior to the adjournment of said public hearing.

Public Notification.

The purpose of public notification is to assure the general public and/or affected citizens,
of having an opportunity to present their perspectives on specific land use issues relating
to a proposed amendment, before the Planning Board submits its final findings and
recommendations to the corporate authorities.

(a) Substantive-Text Amendment. The applicant shall furnish and publish a legal
notice in a newspaper of general circulation within the City. Said legal notice shall
adhere to a format specified by the Planning Department, and shall include, but
not be limited to the date, time & place of the public hearing; the purpose of the
public hearing; and, the complete text of the proposed amendment.

(b) Map Amendment. For all map amendments involving a change in the zoning
district classification of specific zoning lots, the public notification requirements
shall be identical to those required for a conditional use permit, as specified in
Section 12.04 herein. All public notification requirements specified in this Section
shall be fully completed not less than ten (10) days, and not more than twenty (20)
days prior to the scheduled public hearing. No public hearing on said amendments
shall be convened without provisions for adequate public notification. Additional
public notification may be required by the Planning Board when deemed necessary
and appropriate, and/or when required by state statute.

Rules of Evidence and Testimony.

The public hearing shall be open to the public and shall be convened in the Council
Chambers at City Hall or at any other location so specified by the Planning Board. The
Chairman of the Planning Board shall conduct the public hearing, and shall require that
evidence be presented, in the following order:

(a) Restatement of amendment, by the Chairman; only if initial presentation needs
clarification, or if certain portions of the proposed amendment, and/or any
applicable rules or regulations require explanation;

(b) Presentation of supporting testimony and/or evidence;

(c) Presentation of objecting testimony and/or evidence;

(d) Rebuttal;
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(e) Determination of findings;
(f) Conclusions; and,
(g) Submit final findings and recommendations to the corporate authorities.

In carrying out its duties, the Planning Board shall not be bound by the strict rules of
evidence, and may exclude irrelevant, immaterial, incompetent, and/or unduly repetitious
testimony and/or evidence. The Planning Board shall rule on all questions relating to the
admissibility of evidence. The applicant may represent himself or choose to be represented
by counsel and/or a designated agent at the public hearing. The applicant shall be entitled
to no less than one (1) opportunity to speak at the time said public hearing is conducted.
Reasonable opportunity shall also be provided for all interested parties to present their
views. Should it be deemed necessary and appropriate during the-course—of said public
hearing, the Planning Board shall retain the right to request additional information from the
applicant and/or city staff concerning said amendment, and to continue said public hearing
until such information is presented for review. Said request shall be made of the affected
party, in writing, within twenty-four (24) hours of the continuance of said public hearing.
The additional information shall be made available to the Director—of -thePlanning
Department-Planning Director within ten (10) days of said written request, or a written
request for an extension, not to exceed thirty (30) days shall be submitted. Upon receipt,
the Director shall immediately forward said information to the Planning Board for review.
For the purposes of this Ordinance, failure by the applicant to produce said information, or
request an extension under the provisions of this Section, shall be construed as a
withdrawal of the application.

Findings and Recommendations.

At the close of the public hearing, the Planning Board shall determine findings, which detail
the manner—in—which way the proposed amendment is consistent with the goals and
objectives of the this Ordinance.

(a) Substantive Text Amendment. No substantive text amendment shall be
recommended for approval by the Planning Board, until and unless, the Board has
made findings, based upon the evidence presented at the public hearing, to
support or refute each of the following criteria, as applicable:

(1) The proposed substantive text amendment will not result in any
construction, land use, and/or development related activity which would
be detrimental to, or endanger the public health, safety, and/or general
welfare of the City as a whole, or any portion thereof.

(2) The proposed substantive text amendment is consistent with the spirit,
purpose and intent of this Ordinance and the City's Official Comprehensive
Plan.

(b) Map Amendment. No map amendment shall be recommended for approval by
the Planning Board, until and unless, the Board has made findings of fact, based
upon the evidence presented at the public hearing, to support or refute each of the
following:

(1) The proposed map amendment is consistent with the spirit, purpose and
intent of this Ordinance.

(2) The proposed map amendment is consistent with the goals, objectives and
policies of the City's Official Comprehensive Plan, and in full general
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conformity with the land use recommendations specified by said Plan and

delineated-on-the-Official- Land-Use-Plan-Map.

(4) Compatibility with existing uses and the zoning classification of property
within the general area of the subject property.

(5) The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the
existing proposed zoning classification, addressing the need for said map
amendment.

(6) The trend of development, if any, in the general area of the subject
property, including changes, if any, which have taken place since the day
the property in question was placed in its present zoning classification, and
the effect said map amendment would have on said trend.

(7) Decisions.

The Planning Board shall forward their findings and recommendations regarding a
proposed amendment, to the City Council within thirty (30) days of the conclusion of said
public hearing. No application for a substantive text amendment and/or a map amendment,
which has been denied by the City Council, shall be reconsidered within a period of one
(1) year from the date of said denial.

Review Process
Amendment

Application
Submitted

Application reviewed by staff

Staff recommendation prepared h 4
R *Not less than 10days
Public and not more than
NOtiﬁcation * 20days prior to the

public hearing

w

documenting full compliance with all
public notification requirements

Public Hearing held ———

Applicant submits evidence l

Planning Board
Recommendation

w

City Council
Decision
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12.06 APPEALS

Any decision regarding the interpretation and/or enforcement of the provisions of this ordinance
may be appealed, in accordance with the provisions of this Section.

A. Appellate Authority.

Appeals filed under the provisions of this Chapter shall be directed to the designated appellate

body by the Director-of the-Planning-Department-Planning Director, in accordance with the nature

of the decision and/or interpretation being appealed.

(1) Administrative Review and Interpretation.

Final administrative decisions made by the Director-of-the-Planning-Department-Planning

Director, regarding the interpretation of the provisions of this Ordinance shall be appealed
to the Planning Board, who shall convene a hearing on said appeal on the next regularly
scheduled hearing date.

(2) Minor Variance.

Final administrative decisions made by the Director-of-the-Planning-Department-Planning

Director, regarding the provisions of this Ordinance in the granting of a minor variance shall
be appealed to the Planning Board, who shall convene a hearing on said appeal on the
next regularly scheduled hearing date. In deciding the appeal, the Planning Board shall

determine whether—or—net if the decision of the Director—of-thePlanningDepartment

Planning Director is contrary to the manifest weight of the evidence taken by the Director.
(3) Major Variance.

Final administrative decisions made by the Planning Board, regarding the provisions of this
Ordinance in the granting of a major variance shall be appealed to the Mayor and City
Council. In deciding the appeal, the City Council shall determine whether-orneot if the
decision of the Planning Board is contrary to the manifest weight of the evidence taken by
the Board. Any decision by the city Council to override a final administrative decision made
by the Planning Board shall require a majority vote of the city Council.

(4) Conditional Use Permit.

The decision of the corporate authorities, acting on the recommendations of the Planning
Board, regarding the provisions of this Ordinance in the granting of a conditional use
permit, shall be made directly to a court of competent jurisdiction in the manner prescribed
by the Administrative Review Act, of the lllinois Revised Statutes, as amended.

(5) Amendments.

The decision of the corporate authorities, acting on the recommendations of the Planning
Board, regarding the provisions of this Ordinance in the approval of an amendment to the
provisions of this Ordinance, or to the City's Official Zoning Map, shall be made directly to
a court of competent jurisdiction in the manner prescribed by the Administrative Review
Act, of the lllinois Revised Statutes, as amended.

B. Application.

Any individual, agency, board, bureau, commission, institution, firm and/or corporation, public or
private, aggrieved by any decision made by the Planning Board and/or the Directorof-the Planning
Department-Planning Director, may appeal to the appropriate appellate authority specified herein,
in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter, and the applicable statutes of the State of lllinois,
as amended.
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(1) Procedure.

A notice of appeal shall be filed with the Planning Department within seven (7) days of the
effective date of any decision being appealed. The Director-of the-Planning-Department
Planning Director shall immediately notify the Chairman of the Planning Board, upon
receipt of a notice of appeal.

(2) Stay of Proceedings.

The filing of a notice of appeal shall immediately stay all proceedings in furtherance of the
action being appealed, pending a declaration of imminent peril. Should the Birectorof-the
Planning-Department-Planning Director certify, in writing, that by reasons of fact, a stay
would, in his/her opinion, cause imminent peril to life or property, the City Council, or a
court of competent jurisdiction regarding said decision, on due cause shown, shall stay the
proceedings through a declaration of imminent peril and/or a restraining order.

(3) Forms and Assistance.

The appellant shall obtain the appropriate forms from the Planning Department, which shall
provide the appellant with all possible assistance and information necessary to assure a
prompt, thorough and impartial review. The appellant shall be responsible for providing all
information specified on the notice of appeal. Said information shall include, but not be
limited to, the following:

(a) Ownership and/or Operating Interest. Said application shall provide the name,
address and telephone number of the applicant, owners of record and/or
developer.

(b) ldentification of the Decision Being Appealed. Said application shall provide
the following means of accurately identifying the decision being appealed: case
number and filing date of original application.

(¢) Grounds for Appeal. Said notice of appeal shall provide a narrative and/or list of
all facts and/or conditions which serve as the basis for said appeal. The Director
ofthe Planning-Department-Planning Director shall forward copies of the notice of
appeal, and all materials submitted in support of said notice, to the Planning Board
not less than seven (7) days prior to the next regularly scheduled hearing date.
Said notice of appeal and materials shall be a matter of public record, and be made
available for public inspection upon written request.

12.07 APPLICATION FEES AND PENALTIES

For the purposes of this Ordinance, the City’s Department of Collections shall be empowered to
collect fees specified-herein; for which the corporate authorities have deemed necessary and
appropriate to implement the provisions of this ordinance. Subject to the provision of this Section,
under no condition shall fees collected, or any portions thereof, be refunded upon denial of said
application and/or appeal.

A. Fees — The City Council shall establish by Ordinance a schedule of fees, charges, escrows and
expenses required for development review, building permits, zoning certificates, certificates of
occupancy, variations, conditional use permits, temporary use permits, amendments planned
development approvals and other matters pertaining to this Ordinance.

B. Penalties — Any individual, institution, agency, firm, and/or corporation, who violates, disobeys,

omits, neglects, refuses to comply with, or otherwise resists or obstructs the enforcement of the
provisions of this Ordinance, shall, upon conviction, be fined not less than fifty dollars ($50), or
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more than two thousand dollars ($2,000), for each offense. For the purposes of this Ordinance,
each day a violation is permitted to exist, shall constitute a separate offense.
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MEMORANDUM
TO: Kankakee Planning Board
FROM: Mike Hoffman, AICP, PLA, Vice President
Emma Swanson, Associate
DATE: January 28, 2019
RE: Zoning Fees

The attached spreadsheet provides the zoning-related fees for six proximate municipalities, Kankakee
County and the current fees for the City of Kankakee. After collecting and comparing this information, we
feel that it would be appropriate for the City of Kankakee to increase its zoning-related fees to the
following:

Request Fee

Minor Variance

- Residential District $150

- Commercial/Industrial District S500
Major Variance*

- Residential District $250

- Commercial/Industrial District S500
Conditional Use Permit (All Districts) * $600
Map Amendment (All Districts) * $600
Zoning Text Amendment $600
Planned Unit Development (All Districts) * $600
Zoning Verification Letter $250
Zoning Certificate* $100

*Plus reimbursement for engineering, planning, legal, court reporter or other professional consultants

In addition to increasing these fees, we recommend that all applicants requesting conditional use permits,
map amendments, text amendments, and/or planned unit developments shall reimburse the city for its
reasonable costs for engineering, planning, legal, court reporter or other professional consultants
incurred in connection with preparing, studying, inspecting, reviewing, examining, checking and
processing applicants’ requests. This, along with the increased fees, would lessen the burden of the City
for costs incurred for the services, as well as for other zoning related issues that require time, money and
resources.

Attached: Zoning-Related Fee Comparison Chart, Policy for Reimbursement of Costs and Professional Fees

teska associatesinc
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Case Number:

-

KANKAKEE

—E3T. 1853

City of Kankakee Planning & Zoning Division
850 N. Hobbie Avenue
Kankakee, IL 60901

POLICY FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS AND PROFESSIONAL FEES

The following firm, representative, agent or individual does hereby state that it has been fully
disclosed to said party that in order for the City of Kankakee to properly review and evaluate
requests for a planned unit development, conditional use permit, and/or substantive or map
amendment it must necessarily utilize and engage the services of engineering, planning, legal,
court reporting and other professional consultants. The Undersigned hereby agrees to pay to
the City of Kankakee, by reimbursement, the reasonable fees incurred by the City for such
services pertaining to the request of the Undersigned for a planned unit development,
conditional use permit, and/or substantive or map amendment. It is further understood and
agreed that all invoices for such services shall be paid promptly when submitted, but not later
than thirty (30) days, and that the obligation to reimburse the City is binding whether or not a
planned unit development, conditional use permit, and/or substantive or map amendment is in
fact approved.

(PLEASE PRINT)

DATE:

APPLICANT NAME:

FIRM NAME:

BILLING REFUND ADDRESS:

PHONE:

PROJECT:

PROJECT ADDRESS:

APPLICANT SIGNATURE:
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MEMORANDUM

TO: Kankakee Planning Board
FROM: Mike Hoffman, AICP, PLA
DATE: Feb. 6%, 2019

SUBJECT: Zoning on Annexation of 18-acre City Owned Property to I-1

The City of Kankakee owns an 18-acre property at the intersection of East Court Street and N
2750 East Road. This property is currently not annexed into the City but is proposed for
annexation as a part of the proposed East Court Street Tax Increment Financing District. The
property is immediately contiguous to the City limits and will be annexed into Kankakee after
an annexation hearing is held by the City Council. This Public Hearing before the Planning
Board is to determine the appropriate zoning of the property once annexed into the City. The
proposed zoning is I-1, Light Industrial.

Existing Conditions

The property (PIN # 12-17-03-111-
002) was at one-time a drive-in
movie theater. It was acquired by
the City of Kankakee and has been
used for storage for several years.
The site, shown in blue on the
location map, is near I-57, and
immediately south of a large area
(Eastgate Court) zoned and partially
developed for industrial use. The
property has access via an existing
frontage road. The property is
relatively flat, and generally drains : ‘
from north to south. There are Gl L ' 2110
some hedgerow trees along the ‘ Gl g
east, west, and southern property
lines.
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Review Criteria

The City’s zoning ordinance outlines the following criteria for map amendments. The criteria
are listed in bold, with our suggested finding in regular type after each item.

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

The proposed map amendment is consistent with the spirt, purpose and intent of this
Ordinance. — One of the intended purposes of the zoning ordinance is to “conserve the
taxable value of land” in Kankakee. Given this parcels access to Court Street and nearby
I-57, it has significant industrial potential, and is currently surrounded by farm
properties.

The proposed map amendment is consistent with the goals, objectives and policies of
the City’s Official Comprehensive Plan, and in full conformity with the land use
recommendations specified by said Plan and delineated on the Official Land Use Map.
— Zoning and ultimate development of this site for industrial use would be consistent
with the economic development goals contained in the Comprehensive Plan. The 1997
Future Land Use Plan shows this parcel for public use, which was the current use at the
time the map was prepared. While the City does still use the site for some storage, this
use could be relocated, and the property returned to the tax roles for a productive
industrial use.

All required utilities, community facilities and governmental services have been or will
be provided and possess or will possess adequate capacity and/or manpower to
accommodate any permitted use allowed within the zoning classification being
requested, or any conditional use therein, which might subsequently be authorized.
Such required utilities, community facilities and governmental services shall include,
but not be limited to, the following: Water and sewer lines; Storm drainage facilities;
Access to public rights-of-way; Public transportation; Parks and recreational facilities;
Educational facilities; and, Public safety facilities. — This site has access to public
streets. One of the reasons for including it in the proposed TIF is to provide needed
funding for utility extensions.

Compatibility with existing uses and the zoning classification of property within the
general area of the subject property. — Most property north of Court Street in this area
is zoned industrial (I-2), with agriculture to the east and south in the County. The parcel
to the immediate east does not have a zoning shown on the County GIS.

The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning

classification, addressing the need for said map amendment. — Interestingly, it is not
clear what the existing zoning is in the County as it is not illustrated on their GIS. The

teska associatesinc
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1995 City zoning map shows this property as zoned I-2 in the City. However, we have
not been able to find any documents showing annexation — so it was determined we
should go through the formal process to annex and zone the property.

6) The trend of development, if any, in the general area of the subject property, including
changes, if any, which have taken place since the day the property in question was
placed in its present zoning classification, and the effect said map amendment would
have on said trend. — The trend of development in this area has been for industrial use.

Recommendation

Based on the above review, we recommend zoning of the property to Light Industry (I-1) upon
annexation to the City of Kankakee.
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